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          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. Welcome to today's hearing for Civil

          4  Service and Labor. My name is Joe Addabbo. I have

          5  the privilege of Chairing this Committee. And I

          6  thank you all for being here.

          7                 Let me also thank those who have put

          8  this hearing together. To my left here, our Legal

          9  Counsel, Elisa Chae; to her left our Policy Analyst,

         10  Shauneequa Owusu. We have Sarah Brannen, the

         11  Investigations Policy Analyst; Andy Grossman, our

         12  Financial Analyst; and Steve Presser, our Member

         13  Services. We thank them for putting this hearing

         14  together. We thank the Sergeant-At-Arms for making

         15  sure this room is orderly. Thank you very much. And,

         16  again, for all those who have participated today, I

         17  thank them, as well.

         18                 Today's Civil Service and Labor

         19  Committee hearing will discuss what is currently

         20  being done to train and educate our current

         21  workforce, and how can we work on ways to turn out a

         22  better educated and trained worker.

         23                 Related issues to be discussed will

         24  be the possible shortage of workers for trade jobs,

         25  and lack of factual information regarding these
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          2  trade jobs.

          3                 We will examine training programs,

          4  apprenticeship programs and vocational educational

          5  programs, such as CTE. All this in an effort to

          6  promote a better trained and educated workforce now

          7  or for the future.

          8                 So, I am hopeful that not only

          9  through the testimony today, but subsequent to the

         10  hearing today we can work with those involved and

         11  with the Administration to effectuate some positive

         12  change. At this point I've been joined by two of my

         13  colleagues, a member of this Committee, to my right,

         14  Council Member Mike Nelson, and to my left, Council

         15  Member Jim Gennaro.

         16                 Our first panel, representing the

         17  Administration, is Michael Forte from DCAS,

         18  Department of Citywide Administrative Services.

         19                 Mr. Forte, if you will take the

         20  stand, and give your testimony, please.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: Good

         22  afternoon, Chairman Addabbo and members of the

         23  Committee on Civil Service and Labor.

         24                 I am Michael Forte, Assistant

         25  Commissioner for Personnel Development in the
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          2  Department of Citywide Administrative Services,

          3  Division of Citywide Personnel Services.

          4                 On behalf of Commissioner Martha K.

          5  Hirst, I would like to thank you for this

          6  opportunity to update you on the training

          7  opportunities DCAS makes available to all New York

          8  City employees.

          9                 DCAS's mission is to ensure that City

         10  agencies have the critical resources and support

         11  they need to provide the best possible services to

         12  the public.

         13                 Section 814 of the New York City

         14  Charter assigns DCAS the power and duty to

         15  administer the Citywide safety incentive, training

         16  and development and other such personnel programs of

         17  the City and to administer personnel programs of a

         18  Citywide nature or common to two or more departments

         19  where administration by separate agencies would be

         20  impracticable and uneconomical.

         21                 DCAS fulfills these responsibilities

         22  through the provision of Citywide employee training,

         23  enhanced educational opportunities and professional

         24  development programs. All of our programs resources,

         25  services exist to enhance and support the efforts of
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          2  City employees in developing innovative programs and

          3  delivering effective services to the citizens of New

          4  York City.

          5                 It is a challenging and demanding

          6  responsibility, but we believe that such an

          7  investment in our workforce is critical to meeting

          8  the challenges our City faces and compliments Mayor

          9  Bloomberg's commitment to improving New York City

         10  government through technology and delivery of

         11  unprecedented levels of service to the public.

         12                 I would like to begin by describing

         13  the wide range of training programs, educational

         14  opportunities, and services provided to all City

         15  employees from entry to commissioner level. And then

         16  highlight some of our newest programs and

         17  initiatives, as well as some agency-specific

         18  training programs.

         19                 The DCAS Bureau of Personnel

         20  Development is the central training resource within

         21  New York City government and is dedicated to

         22  assisting City agencies in their efforts to use

         23  training to enhance the economy, efficiency and

         24  effectiveness of their operations.

         25                 To that end, we managed the Citywide
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          2  training center and also conduct Citywide Executive

          3  Development Programs.

          4                 The Citywide Training Center provides

          5  a comprehensive curriculum of courses, workshops and

          6  seminars to meet the training and development needs

          7  of managerial, supervisory, administrative,

          8  clerical, auditing, procurement, professional,

          9  technical and training personnel at all City

         10  agencies.

         11                 The CTC services are available to

         12  City employees in Mayoral and non-Mayoral agencies,

         13  elected officials offices, boards and commissions.

         14                 CTC offers a wide range of courses

         15  designed to improve both individual and agency

         16  performance.

         17                 Course categories include workplace

         18  effectiveness, communication, management and

         19  supervision, computer, technology skills,

         20  procurement, auditing, a new employee orientation

         21  program and the administrative professional

         22  certificate programs.

         23                 Furthermore, all CTC training

         24  programs can be customized to meet agency-specific

         25  objectives, as well as location and time
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          2  constraints.

          3                 Our expert faculty come from the

          4  public, private and non-profit sectors and as

          5  practitioners of the skills they teach, bring a

          6  wealth of experience to City-specific issues and

          7  situations.

          8                 CTC currently offers more than 200

          9  course titles and in Fiscal Year 2007, provided

         10  training to over 14,000 employees in nearly 1,000

         11  class sessions.

         12                 This number represents an increase of

         13  over 2,000 employees trained as compared to Fiscal

         14  Year 2006.

         15                 For many employees, the Citywide

         16  training center offers the opportunity to begin

         17  acquiring and refining basic workplace skills.

         18  Training in these areas not only enhances the job

         19  performance of the employees who participate, but

         20  also provides an important foundation for future

         21  career advancement.

         22                 For example, employees with little or

         23  no computer skills are able to participate in

         24  hands-on computer training and become proficient in

         25  a host of workplace software applications, such as
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          2  Microsoft Outlook, Word, Excel and Access. Other CTC

          3  workplace foundation courses include basic customer

          4  service and both written and interpersonal

          5  communication classes, including action grammar,

          6  successful letter memo writing and easy English for

          7  the multilingual writer.

          8                 Additionally, we offer preparing for

          9  supervision, managing the transition course for

         10  employees with no prior supervisory experience.

         11                 One of the ways DCAS promotes the

         12  Citywide training center's many offerings is at its

         13  annual training expo, which took place September

         14  18th to the 25th.

         15                 The Expo is a full week of training

         16  opportunities and special events targeted to City

         17  employees of all levels and professional

         18  disciplines.

         19                 1,122 employees representing

         20  approximately 50 agencies attended various expo

         21  events this September, a 32 percent increase as

         22  compared to the prior fiscal year.

         23                 In addition to the CTC, DCAS also

         24  offers specialized development opportunities for

         25  both seasoned executives and emerging leaders within
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          2  City government through its Citywide executive

          3  development programs.

          4                 These programs include the leadership

          5  institute, management academy and human resource

          6  program of professional practice.

          7                 They focus on best and next practices

          8  for public sector executives with an emphasis on

          9  strategic change, leadership and management,

         10  innovation and understanding key areas of systems

         11  and processes.

         12                 Also, I just want to mention that the

         13  Leadership Institute started October 16th, and we

         14  actually have a participant from the City Council in

         15  this year's class, Brenda Schultz, who is I think

         16  the Chief Contracting Officer.

         17                 Each of our Citywide Executive

         18  Development Programs requires an extensive

         19  commitment on the part of the program participants

         20  and the agencies sponsoring them.

         21                 Programs vary in length from two and

         22  a half to four months, and consist of weekly

         23  seminars, site visits, application projects and

         24  program presentations.

         25                 Completion of our programs is a
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          2  significant career accomplishment of which graduates

          3  can be proud.

          4                 I am also pleased to be able to

          5  update you today on three new enhancements to our

          6  executive development programs.

          7                 First, beginning in January 2008, we

          8  will be launching our newest Citywide executive

          9  development program, the Project Management

         10  Practical. Designed for managers and senior level

         11  professionals from a variety of disciplines, the PMP

         12  will provide participants the opportunity to develop

         13  recognized project management skills to apply with

         14  in their current work environment, as well as

         15  project management versatility that will allow them

         16  to collaborate more effectively.

         17                 The program will be taught by

         18  certified project management professionals, and

         19  include a combination of classroom learning and

         20  project management application opportunities.

         21                 We are also pleased as part of

         22  Citywide Executive Development to be launching the

         23  Fred Hayes Prize, to honor aspiring and emerging

         24  leaders in New York City government.

         25                 This prize was named for a former
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          2  City Budget Director, whose long career at all

          3  levels of government was devoted to bringing sound

          4  and innovative management practices to public work.

          5                 Fred's friends and colleagues have

          6  raised private funding and collaborated with us to

          7  honor his memory through the establishment of this

          8  cash award which will be made annually to an

          9  aspiring or emerging leader in City government.

         10                 Finally, our Human Resource Program

         11  of Professional Practice, the program created by the

         12  Bloomberg Administration to enhance the skills of

         13  agency Human Resource Professionals, has recently

         14  been granted approved provider status by the Human

         15  Resource Certification Institute.

         16                 HRCI is the leading independent

         17  internationally recognized certifying body for the

         18  HR profession, and all HR related continuing

         19  education courses offer through our program are now

         20  preapproved for recertification credit hours.

         21                 In addition to the programs and

         22  courses I already mentioned, DCAS also works with

         23  City agencies, including elected officials offices,

         24  boards, and commissions, to provide customized

         25  training programs for their employees.
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          2                 These customized examples have ranged

          3  from the training of the 3-1-1 Call Center staff, to

          4  follow recent examples, a changed management program

          5  leading and embracing continuous change, for 500

          6  Department of Homeless Services managers and

          7  supervisors in support of the five-year plan to

          8  eliminate homelessness in New York City, and

          9  agency-specific Management and Leadership

         10  Development Program being conducted for 1,600

         11  Department of Environmental Protection staff as part

         12  of an effort to transform the agency culture,

         13  customized Consultative Leadership courses for 50

         14  Department of Education Borough Personnel Officers

         15  in support of district office restructuring, and

         16  Dynamics of Customer Care, a two-day customer

         17  service program customized for nearly 600 of the

         18  City University of New York Borough of Manhattan

         19  Community College front line staff.

         20                 A number of our programs also support

         21  legislative initiatives of the Council through

         22  training the City employees charged with

         23  implementing these initiatives.

         24                 These programs include a design and

         25  construction excellence series targeted to
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          2  agency-capital program staff, which includes various

          3  lead and green building issue courses in support of

          4  Local Law 86, a number of MWBE training initiatives

          5  in support of Local Law 129, which are offered in

          6  cooperation with the Mayor's Office of Contract

          7  Services and Department of Small Business Services,

          8  and a series of environmentally preferable

          9  purchasing classes, in support of Local Laws 118,

         10  119, 120, 121 and 123. Also offered in cooperation

         11  with MOCs.

         12                 Of course, all of this represents

         13  only a small sample of our investment in the

         14  training and development of City employees. Much

         15  more information about our current courses and

         16  programs can be found on the Internet at NYC.gov, as

         17  well as in your information packets.

         18                 As the information and skill needs of

         19  City employees continue to change, we will continue

         20  to update our offerings and strategies to provide

         21  effective and relevant training opportunities and

         22  services.

         23                 DCAS is committed to ensuring the

         24  excellence of these training and executive

         25  development programs, and their relevance to the
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          2  challenges of City government so that employees at

          3  all levels are well prepared to meet those

          4  challenges.

          5                 We are extremely proud of the

          6  quality, variety and the cost effectiveness of these

          7  programs, and I extend an open invitation to you,

          8  Chairman Addabbo, as well as other members of the

          9  Civil Service and Labor Committee, to visit our

         10  Citywide training center located at 2 Washington

         11  Street.

         12                 This concludes my testimony and I

         13  will now answer any questions that you may have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Forte, I

         15  want to thank you for your testimony. At this time,

         16  let me welcome a colleague and member of this

         17  Committee, Council Member Melissa Mark-Viverito.

         18  Council member, thank you for showing.

         19                 And Council Member Larry Seabrook.

         20  Council Member, good to see you.

         21                 Again, thank you for your testimony,

         22  and we will take you up on that site visit to the

         23  training center in due time.

         24                 Just a couple of questions based on

         25  your testimony, and, again, of course, any questions
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          2  from my colleagues.

          3                 The training programs that you have,

          4  and the programs that you describe in your

          5  testimony, how are they promoted? How does the

          6  workers out there who want to take advantage of

          7  these programs, how do they know about these

          8  programs?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: There

         10  are various different ways that we promote the

         11  program. You all have a packet in front of you, and

         12  in that program you have our printed material. We

         13  have a course catalog, we have program brochures. We

         14  also, I mentioned in the testimony that we conduct

         15  special events. The biggest one, the kind of

         16  premiere one is the training expo that we do once a

         17  year where people get a chance to come and sample

         18  the courses, sample the programs, ask questions.

         19                 We also have a very extensive

         20  website, and all of the information that's in your

         21  packet, as well as more detail, and the latest

         22  schedules is available on that website.

         23                 We also promote our programs through

         24  City Share. Often times when you click onto City

         25  Share on the City's Intranet, the show cased program
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          2  of the week will very frequently be one of our

          3  training programs. We had a number of the CTC

          4  programs on there. We also had the Project

          5  Management Practical featured on there.

          6                 We also have a network of training

          7  liaisons throughout City government, and at each

          8  agency we have a liaison that we work with that we

          9  share information with, that we strategize with and

         10  they kind of push out information at all the

         11  agencies as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I see the folder

         13  here, the brochures are really nice. But, again, how

         14  are they distributed to the workers? I understand

         15  you have them, but more specifically, how do you get

         16  them to the workers?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: Again,

         18  at each agency we have a liaison that we work with

         19  and they usually will e-mail, agencies will often

         20  times reprint their materials and they'll give them

         21  out to employees.

         22                 Word of mouth is another good way

         23  that information gets, you know -- I mean, I think,

         24  again, you know, people are finding out about the

         25  programs because the numbers of people that we're
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          2  training are going up, so, you know, I think we're

          3  doing a good job of getting the word out to

          4  employees.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I would only

          6  suggest that in the future we try and get these,

          7  maybe even to the Council members' offices so that

          8  we can, we know many City employees live in our

          9  district, maybe we can get these packets into our

         10  district. And that way, I'd like to work with you on

         11  trying to find out ways we can better do outreach.

         12                 You know, you in your testimony had

         13  mentioned that these programs seem to be popular.

         14  You've seen the increased numbers. Does that mean

         15  they're so popular and they're doing so well that

         16  possibly we, as a City, need to invest more in these

         17  programs, maybe budgetarily allocate more? Is that

         18  possible?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: It's

         20  obviously something that we could look at. What we

         21  operate on is a cost-sharing model so DCAS makes a

         22  central investment for facilities and staff and then

         23  the costs for most of the programs are also shared

         24  by the agencies, so that creates a certain

         25  elasticness for us.
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          2                 You know, it's rare that we have to

          3  turn down requests for training. We're usually able

          4  to open additional sections of courses to

          5  accommodate people that want it. But more resources

          6  is always good to work with.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So, we will

          8  definitely talk about that as we approach the Fiscal

          9  Year '09 budget.

         10                 The programs and the training that

         11  you have mentioned, the Citywide training center,

         12  where is that located?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: The

         14  Citywide Training Center is located at 2 Washington

         15  Street, which is right across from Battery Park.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And the other

         17  training programs, are they there or are they

         18  throughout the City?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: We

         20  operate, primarily we operate our Executive

         21  Development Programs also out of 2 Washington

         22  Street, but many of the programs, either because an

         23  agency requests it, will deliver on-site to an

         24  agency location, and we do that not only throughout

         25  the five boroughs, but also we do training for
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          2  agencies that have facilities, even outside of New

          3  York City.

          4                 Many of our programs also contain

          5  components that involve field visits and stuff like

          6  that, so you may be in a program where it will meet

          7  at 2 Washington Street, on a certain schedule and

          8  then certain days will take place where you'll go on

          9  a field visit and things like that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So there are

         11  some locations elsewhere.

         12                 Those who take advantage of these

         13  programs, are they on their own time? Are they on

         14  City time?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: Most of

         16  our programs are on City time. To participate in the

         17  programs does require approval by your agency and

         18  it's considered part of your work day.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You had

         20  mentioned also, January 2008 you will have a new

         21  Citywide Executive Development Program, the Project

         22  Management. In my conversations with Commissioner

         23  Hirst, this Committee will look to do a future

         24  oversight hearing on the new programs that you have

         25  and the computerized testing center. So, we look
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          2  forward, we do look forward to that.

          3                 At this point, questions from my

          4  colleagues?

          5                 Council Member Melissa Mark-Viverito.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Sorry.

          7  I hope you just didn't ask this question, but

          8  considering the hearing that we're having today, are

          9  any of your programs, or training, specifically

         10  geared towards skilled, the skill trades, or

         11  expanding on it or introduction to, or whatever? I'm

         12  just looking through your material and it does not

         13  appear that anything is focused in that direction.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: Right.

         15  We don't have a program specifically geared towards

         16  the skills trades.

         17                 In fact, most of our programs tend to

         18  not be discipline-specific. There are things that we

         19  get a cross-section of different disciplines,

         20  especially in terms of executive development.

         21                 Same thing with the Project

         22  Management Practical, when that launches it will be

         23  a cross-section of different employees in different

         24  functions all learning that material and they'll

         25  each have a different and unique way to apply it to
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          2  the job that they do.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Would

          4  you see any possibility of maybe DCAS entertaining

          5  the idea of maybe going down the path, just

          6  considering the opportunities that are being

          7  provided, when we talk about construction in

          8  general, or any other matter or technology in the

          9  way it's expanding, it would be beneficial to the

         10  City as well, which seems to be your mission, to

         11  really develop people in those areas.

         12                 So, I'm wondering if this is

         13  something that maybe has been discussed internally

         14  with DCAS, with the City and maybe something that

         15  you would attempt to do or try to do?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: It

         17  hasn't been discussed, but we'd certainly be open to

         18  taking a look at it.

         19                 As you can see from the folder and

         20  the testimony, we're always developing new programs

         21  to try to be responsive to the needs, so we could

         22  definitely take a look.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Okay. I

         24  think that's something that we probably would

         25  promote and encourage.
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          2                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          4  Council member.

          5                 In your testimony you alluded to

          6  obviously training, customize, and dealing with

          7  other agencies, you're actively cooperating with

          8  other City agencies, correct?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Constantly

         11  reaching out to them, seeing what the workers may

         12  need as far as training?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That's correct?

         15                 How ab out the unions who represent

         16  those workers?

         17                 Have you included them in your

         18  discussion as far as training, what they may be

         19  seeing in their membership?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: Yes,

         21  many times when we're developing an agency specific

         22  program, the agency that's asking us to come in and

         23  help them develop the program will bring in the

         24  union representation. So, it's represented in that

         25  fashion.
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          2                 We also have a relatively new program

          3  that's only two semesters old. I didn't -- it's not

          4  mentioned in the testimony, but you actually have it

          5  in your folder. It's a program that we're offering

          6  cooperatively with CUNY, and it's called CUNY at the

          7  CTC. And that program was actually developed between

          8  CUNY, DCAS and participating unions, primarily 1180

          9  and DC 37 had some input. So that actually gives

         10  employees an opportunity to come and take, it's a

         11  public administration program, and what it does is,

         12  it's fully college credit bearing, so any of the

         13  courses that you take, you'll earn college credits,

         14  but you also get a certificate, a jointly issued

         15  certificate from DCAS and CUNY upon completion of

         16  four courses. So, it kind of functions as a

         17  certificate program, but you can also get straight

         18  through to get a degree. So, it's nice because some

         19  people maybe have a degree in -- you know, the last

         20  time they went to college was 20 years ago, their

         21  degree is in arts and they want to come back and

         22  they want to do some academic work in public

         23  administration, but they may not want to get the

         24  full degree, so it's got an option of a certificate

         25  and a degree and that was done collaboratively with
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          2  the unions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Well, that's

          4  great to hear. Obviously the more people included in

          5  giving input, obviously the better the program.

          6                 Well, Mr. Forte, I really appreciate

          7  your time and testimony today. I'm sorry. Council

          8  Member Seabrook. Hold that thought.

          9                 Council Member Seabrook.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes. Just a

         11  quick question here.

         12                 You talked about the training as it

         13  relates to the Local Law 129, the MWBE; what type of

         14  training is given dealing with that, and when is it

         15  offered, and how has it been adopted to this law

         16  that we passed with minority and women-owned

         17  participation?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: Those

         19  courses are offered in cooperation with the

         20  Department of Small Business Services and the

         21  Mayor's Office of Contract Services.

         22                 They're targeted primarily to agency

         23  procurement staff, to teach them the relevant

         24  information that they need to know about conducting

         25  their procurement in accordance with the local law.
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          2                 We have some sections that are a

          3  little bit broader, because, you know, procurement

          4  is handled in different ways at different agencies,

          5  and in some agencies it's very centralized, so if

          6  you train the procurement staff, you've effectively

          7  trained everyone who are going to deal with

          8  procurement.

          9                 In other agencies it's less

         10  centralized, so even when you train the procurement

         11  staff, there are still a lot of people out there

         12  dealing with procurement that need to be reached.

         13                 So, there have been a number of

         14  different course titles that we've offered. Most

         15  have been targeted to the procurement staff, some

         16  have been targeted a little bit more broadly.

         17                 It also, one of them, of those

         18  courses actually comes up, we just ran a report just

         19  to try to get a handle on what the most popular

         20  class sections were that we offered with specific

         21  titles, and one of those courses in the MWBE series

         22  actually popped up as one of our top 20 courses and

         23  that's in the MWBE series. So, that's a good sign.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Okay. What

         25  is the total allocation of the budget that's
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          2  designated for this program that you're running?

          3  What's the budget? I didn't hear that.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: In

          5  terms of centralized costs, the budget is about,

          6  between two and a half and $3 million. And that

          7  equates out to a unit cost per person that we train

          8  of $179.40.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So this

         10  training in this budget, how much of this is RFP'd

         11  out to vendors that participate in this training?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: A good

         13  portion of the training that we do is conducted by

         14  outside vendors.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And there is

         16  that notice that goes out to everyone? Is it

         17  possible we can get a copy of those things that you

         18  send out, so that we would know that, and certainly

         19  the participation since you're instructing people

         20  about MWBE, what is their participation in this

         21  training as well?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE:

         23  Absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Okay.

         25                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          3  Council Member Seabrook.

          4                 Mr. Forte, thank you very much for

          5  your time. I know somebody from the Administration

          6  will be standing by after your testimony to hear

          7  other witnesses, and we look forward to working with

          8  you on this issue, as we look to improve ways to

          9  train current workforce, even looking at ways to

         10  help future workforce.

         11                 So, again, thank you very much for

         12  your time, and we look forward to working with you

         13  in the future.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FORTE: Okay,

         15  thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 Our next panel, Mr. Ed Ott, from

         19  Central Labor Council. And Michael Mulgrew, Vice

         20  President of UFT.

         21                 We've been joined by my colleague,

         22  Council Member Eric Gioia. Council Member Gioia,

         23  thank you for being here.

         24                 Gentlemen, thank you for being here.

         25  Please state your name and give your testimony.
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          2                 MR. MULGREW: Michael Mulgrew, Vice

          3  President, United Federation of Teachers for Career

          4  and Technical Education, Schools and Programs.

          5                 Thank you. And thank you, City

          6  Council people, for being here, and thank you,

          7  Chairman Addabbo.

          8                 I would like to start by talking

          9  about the Career and Technical Education Programs

         10  that the Union believes that these programs need to

         11  exceed for our City to develop.

         12                 In brief, they're a real success

         13  story. But the City treats them as an unloved

         14  stepchild.

         15                 If a school is to prepare the next

         16  generation for citizenship, as well as to see that

         17  they become productive members of society, then our

         18  children should be preparing not so much for a job,

         19  as a living wage income, but for a good skilled job,

         20  because poverty and democratic citizenship don't

         21  mix.

         22                 Career and technical eduction, what

         23  used to be called "vocational education," is a City

         24  program that for the most part works well. We know

         25  it works because the members and the staff in the
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          2  schools see the results.

          3                 Our members teach skills in dozens of

          4  fields, including automotive repair, building

          5  trades, health care, transit technology, and medical

          6  technology, law and justice, graphic illustrations,

          7  graphic designs, information technology, culinary

          8  arts and others.

          9                 The union also works closely with the

         10  advisory council for CTE for the New York City

         11  Department of Ed, to ensure that school programs

         12  aligned with the greater New York area's workforce

         13  needs.

         14                 The program would work even better if

         15  the DOE backed them better.

         16                 We know that the data shows that

         17  students who go to CTE schools have higher academic

         18  rates, higher regents passing rates, higher

         19  graduation rates, higher rates of college enrollment

         20  and significantly lower drop-out rates than the City

         21  average.

         22                 CTE turns failing schools into

         23  successful ones. All it needs is consistent backing

         24  from the City. Instead, we find fewer students

         25  enrolling, not more.
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          2                 The vocational and academic missions

          3  -- excuse me, one second.

          4                 What do our kids need? Our kids need

          5  access to decent jobs. More than 40 years ago, the

          6  great Civil Rights leader, Biad Ruston (phonetic),

          7  said that the best anti-poverty program is a good

          8  job. That's still true today, but the number of

          9  on-skill jobs keeps shrinking, even as the thing

         10  industry expects from our kids is changing.

         11                 CTE creates an environment where

         12  students learn life skills. They learn to dress

         13  appropriately, to come to work on time. They learn

         14  to master literacy and math skills.

         15                 Society benefits, too. When career

         16  and technical education works for today's young

         17  people, a recent Columbia University study showed

         18  that having the national drop-out rate would save

         19  $127,000 over the lifetime of every additional high

         20  school graduate.

         21                 Saving would come from additional tax

         22  revenue, reduce public health, and criminal justice

         23  costs. Turning out more highly skilled workers means

         24  economic development benefits for the City.

         25                 Finally, career and technical
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          2  schooling isn't just education's past, it's

          3  education's future too. Not only should the high

          4  schools be better funded and backed by Tweed, there

          5  ought to be more technology programs in middle

          6  schools leading up to CT in high schools.

          7                 There ought to be a City/State

          8  partnership committed to reinvigorating CTE. There

          9  needs to be a tighter fit between economic

         10  development agencies and education.

         11                 There should be more early internship

         12  programs. There ought to be a fit between incubator

         13  industry projects and jobs for students and skilled

         14  workers.

         15                 It was fitting that when City

         16  Comptroller Thompson gave his talk to the business

         17  leaders at an Association for a Better New York

         18  breakfast, he told some of the City's top employers

         19  that a competitive City is a skilled City. A skilled

         20  City is a City that works. A City that works is a

         21  City of hope.

         22                 To achieve all that, we need to

         23  nurture and expand a skilled workforce. The business

         24  community knows that, so do we in the labor

         25  movement, so do the political leaders and educators,
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          2  but at this time there are 200,000 young men and

          3  women between the ages of 16 and 24 with no

          4  discernible skills.

          5                 In addition, there are many more

          6  working poor in New York, even as we have skilled

          7  worker shortages in almost every major industry in

          8  New York City.

          9                 Employers say they can't get the help

         10  they need. I hear it from employers all the time

         11  through my work and various industry councils that I

         12  sit on now, I hear it from the New York Times on

         13  October 24th, that reported, a paper quoted,

         14  "Automotive High School Principal Melissa Silberman

         15  as saying that once her students have the skills,

         16  there are jobs out there waiting for these kids.

         17  There is a real need for mechanics. A lot of baby

         18  boomers who became mechanics are retiring and there

         19  are not a lot of people filling those spots. It's

         20  not something you can out source to some other

         21  country. I tell kids, 'People can't call Lexus and

         22  say, can you troubleshoot my car for me over the

         23  phone?'".

         24                 These trends are in every major

         25  industry in New York City. Right now the projections
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          2  are showing there will be a health care need of

          3  nearly 20,000 openings by 2012. In construction

          4  there will be openings of approximately 4,000 a

          5  year. Science and technology in this City are

          6  projected at 3,700 new jobs every year until 2012.

          7  In automotive, 1,000 jobs per year, and in aviation,

          8  400 jobs per year and those are just some of the

          9  basic industries that are treated inside of New York

         10  City.

         11                 Such a workforce requires a regular

         12  training and skills upgrading. To a great degree,

         13  the City schools' career and tech ed programs do

         14  provide that. They are the only entity inside the

         15  school system addressing this problem.

         16                 Over the last seven years, the CTE

         17  sequences and the students enrolled have graduated

         18  at an 18 percent higher rate than those students not

         19  enrolled in CTE programs.

         20                 However, during the same period, the

         21  number of students enrolling in CTE has declined.

         22  The UFT believes that the CTE sequences in New York

         23  City need to be expanded and aligned with the

         24  workforce needs of the City. Just as the Comptroller

         25  outlined, we want more funding for CTE, funding that
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          2  reflects actual costs.

          3                 We want to see more public/private

          4  partnerships developed. We want academic

          5  intervention programs expanded for CTE enrolled

          6  students. We want CTE components added to the new

          7  DOE progress report for schools.

          8                 I agree with the Center for the Urban

          9  Future researcher David Fisher, who found in his

         10  workforce study, "Work in Progress," that unlike the

         11  practices of the previous Administration, issues of

         12  workforce development command the attention of the

         13  Mayor and the City's top leaders.

         14                 So far so good. What Fisher faults

         15  the Bloomberg Administration for, and I agree, is a

         16  glaring absence of coordination, which has meant

         17  overlap and duplication of services, while other

         18  major needs have gone practically unaddressed.

         19                 There is a lack of communication in

         20  the workforce development community. Two years ago,

         21  the DOE opened a construction school in Queens. That

         22  was a positive step, since it marked the school

         23  system's acknowledgment of a severe shortage of

         24  skilled workers in the City's construction industry.

         25  However, up until that announcement, the Department

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  of Education was downsizing and closing the

          3  construction programs inside of the City schools,

          4  based on the assumption that there was no need for

          5  additional workers.

          6                 There is still a disconnect of

          7  communication and coordination between the industry

          8  needs, the workforce development community and the

          9  school system. This disconnect needs to end.

         10                 There are more than 200 entities

         11  involved in worker training in the New York area,

         12  and most do excellent work. But in too many cases

         13  they do that work in isolation.

         14                 There is no formal system for

         15  collaborating and sharing information and resources.

         16  The UFT has partnered with Cornell University School

         17  of Industrial Labor Relations, just to map out the

         18  existing programs. Not try to figure out how to get

         19  them to work together, because it's such a complex

         20  situation.

         21                 Other states are doing something

         22  about this issue, about funding and coordination.

         23                 In California, state voters approved

         24  a $10.4 billion school construction bond last year.

         25  The bond contained $500 million for career and tech
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          2  facilities.

          3                 In addition, a bill, lending its way

          4  to the California Legislature, would simply

          5  credentialing for career and tech teachers.

          6                 It would provide more flexibility in

          7  what they can teach, and require every high school

          8  student to take at least two career tech courses.

          9                 These are some of the things we would

         10  like the City Council to consider.

         11                 Support discrete funding in each

         12  school budget that guarantees shop upgrades and

         13  adequate supplies and materials, instead of having

         14  them put in bulk allotments.

         15                 Keep after the DOE to ensure that

         16  career and technical education students are allowed

         17  adequate time in the school schedule to meet the

         18  requirements of their certified industry programs.

         19  Advocate that the schools running CTE sequence

         20  receive credit in the DOE progress report.

         21                 Use the Council's bully-pulpit to

         22  ensure the City emphasizes the hiring of qualified

         23  teachers for CTE in its recruitment efforts.

         24                 Envision the schools just not as a

         25  training grounds for emerging workers, but as
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          2  centers for adult, retooling and training also.

          3                 Help the schools and industries

          4  implement mechanisms that share information on

          5  workforce needs. Help create mechanisms for

          6  partnerships to be formed at school level and create

          7  incentives for principals to prize partnerships.

          8                 Ensure that when a business does

          9  commit resources to a program, the program isn't cut

         10  back, as was the case when Bushwick High School

         11  received the full-scale state-of-the-art printing

         12  press and a major grant from Xerox for a graphic

         13  arts program, only to be told a year later that the

         14  school and program were closed.

         15                 Bottom line: We need to streamline

         16  the training and employment service system and make

         17  it transparent. We need to identify employers, labor

         18  market needs, then direct services to meeting that

         19  demand.

         20                 We need to end the disconnect where

         21  little or no coordination goes on between public and

         22  private agencies that provide workforce services.

         23                 We need a system that both focuses on

         24  training, while being sensitive to the types of jobs

         25  companies need to fill, or jobs they anticipate
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          2  creating.

          3                 Most important, we want career track

          4  employment that pays a living wage. We can do this.

          5  We can save the young people from being economically

          6  disenfranchised by creating a system that uniformly

          7  teaches skill sets that business needs. Do this, and

          8  we all win. And how often do policy makers and

          9  legislators and union leaders and business people

         10  find themselves in a win/win situation?

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MR. OTT: Good afternoon, Mr.

         13  Chairman, members of the Committee.

         14                 My name is Ed Ott. I'm the Executive

         15  Director of the New York City Central Labor Council.

         16  I am here today to testify on behalf of the

         17  Consortium for Worker Ed, the Workforce Training and

         18  Education arm of the Labor Council.

         19                 Since 1985, CWE has served as the

         20  Workforce Development System for incumbent workers

         21  in New York City, providing workers with training,

         22  education, and job readiness transition skills.

         23                 Today's economy, increasingly driven

         24  by new technologies and globalization, demands a

         25  workforce with the ability to adopt different
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          2  skills. The only way for businesses to stay

          3  competitive is to reinvent themselves, which in the

          4  process changes the make-up of jobs.

          5                 There was a time when people had one

          6  job that comprised their whole career. Now we're in

          7  a period where we see workers changing jobs multiple

          8  times throughout their lifetime.

          9                 The only people who can keep up with

         10  this model are those who continue to update their

         11  skill, which makes job training and development and

         12  education essential for continued success.

         13                 Around the CWE we talk about a

         14  lifetime access to education and training, and that

         15  is a real commitment that has to be made.

         16                 The Labor Movement recognized the

         17  need for workers to update their skills early on as

         18  job content started to change, and local unions

         19  began to establish education funds as part of their

         20  collective bargaining agreements.

         21                 Through these funds, the unions work

         22  with employers to expand education benefits for

         23  workers and their families, and provide specialized

         24  services and training opportunities. The internal

         25  education programs unions use have received
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          2  widespread attention from business, government and

          3  policy makers, and are national models for cutting

          4  edge workforce learning.

          5                 As the workforce system for existing

          6  labor management partnerships, CWE delivers an

          7  industry specific training, job upgrade and

          8  pre-apprenticeship training to more than 60,000

          9  union members annually.

         10                 Four areas I want to highlight for

         11  you today are in the industries of transportation,

         12  construction, information services, and health care.

         13                 Commercial driver's license. There is

         14  a high demand for truck drivers who want to obtain

         15  commercial driver's licenses in the transportation

         16  industry. To that end, we offer classes for workers

         17  who need licenses to retain their jobs or move on to

         18  positions as drivers of mid-sized trucks.

         19                 Construction skill trades. The

         20  management side of this sector offers the highest

         21  job growth potential in positions such as

         22  estimators. And also creates new bridge

         23  opportunities for minority contracting to open

         24  apprenticeship opportunities to specialized programs

         25  with larger unionized contracts.

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 Information services. The Consortium

          3  offers classes for workers to obtain jobs in

          4  computer repair and networking in the health care

          5  industry. For instance, personal care. Health care.

          6                 We also offer classes for certified

          7  nurses aides and personal care aides, among others.

          8                 These services are all being offered

          9  to a wide range of New Yorkers, able body adults, a

         10  modicum of ex-offenders and other specialized

         11  groups, as well as youth aged out of the foster care

         12  system.

         13                 For the past three years, City

         14  Council funding has supported the Consortium's work

         15  of service centers network, which delivers learning

         16  courses in basic skills, ESL, job readiness and

         17  computer literacy throughout the five boroughs.

         18                 In Fiscal Year '07, worker service

         19  centers network serve 13,000 community residents in

         20  approximately 67 community-based organizations. For

         21  that funding, I have to thank you, Mr. Chair, the

         22  Speaker and every member on this panel who has

         23  assisted us in securing support for that.

         24                 The worker service system is the

         25  foundation of a larger workforce structure, which we
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          2  continue to build, expand capacity and consolidate

          3  efforts with the aim of meeting more worker service

          4  needs.

          5                 Studies have shown that early expose

          6  to career options affect individual development

          7  later on, and can therefore result in greater

          8  opportunities for workers, which is why my colleague

          9  here, before talking about the importance of high

         10  school, last year at a Women's Build Conference,

         11  several of the people involved in the construction

         12  training aspect stood up under the question period

         13  and talked about the need to get young women exposed

         14  early on, even as early as middle school, to some of

         15  these career options, so that they can begin to get

         16  oriented to possibilities and hope.

         17                 This has been relevant for students

         18  as early on as middle school level, which shows us

         19  that we must continue to invest in populations that

         20  exist on different plains of society.

         21                 Human capital is the determining

         22  factor in the success of our economy. If we don't

         23  recognize and support that notion with education and

         24  job training, we will be doing ourselves a major

         25  disservice.
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          2                 In an era of diminishing funding for

          3  workforce development, the City Council has taken

          4  the first step to recreating a workforce program

          5  that will support and increase the middle class and

          6  meet the needs of traditionally underserved

          7  populations.

          8                 The target population includes

          9  unemployed New Yorkers, under-employed workers and

         10  low skilled workers.

         11                 The Council has joined with the CLC

         12  and the Consortium informing the new system to help

         13  long-term unemployed population in the City

         14  identified in the community service society's report

         15  and elaborated on in the Mayor's Poverty Commission

         16  Report.

         17                 This new initiative is the Jobs To

         18  Build On Program. Funded by the Council through the

         19  sponsorship of Council Member Seabrook, Jobs to

         20  Build On forms a partnership with some of the City's

         21  most prestigious non-profits and community-based

         22  organizations, the City's labor movement and the

         23  Consortium for worker education.

         24                 Working in collaboration with

         25  government and the business sector, this is a

                                                            46

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  revolutionary approach to workforce development in

          3  this City and elsewhere around the nation that will

          4  also allow us to take advantage of the integrated

          5  opportunities of the 21st century.

          6                 Under Jobs to Build On, CWE, as the

          7  Administrator, will partner with community-based

          8  organizations serving residents where they live,

          9  identify growing business sectors in need of

         10  workers; train, upgrade and place newly skilled

         11  community residents into union and non-union jobs,

         12  partner with the business community in placing

         13  workers and offer innovative, including incentive

         14  training and education packages to employers so that

         15  they will hire workers who may not otherwise be able

         16  to develop career pathways, and enabling them to

         17  enter the middle class.

         18                 The goals of this program are to

         19  secure good jobs and good wages in construction,

         20  health care, transportation, and baking and culinary

         21  arts and   hospital industries, among others -- and

         22  hospitality industries, among others.

         23                 The consortium will use its existing

         24  framework to start working in certain industries

         25  while looking to expand into other areas to connect
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          2  the community with more job development

          3  opportunities, as well as provide skilled laborers

          4  to strengthen our City's economy.

          5                 The need to train new workers is

          6  intensified by PlaNYC, and it's ability to generate

          7  tens of thousands of new jobs to the City once

          8  implemented.

          9                 Through this interactive,

         10  interdependent network created by Jobs To Build On,

         11  emergent workers entering the system, labor,

         12  government and business, will be able to benefit

         13  from our continuously transforming workforce.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         16  much to this panel.

         17                 I have questions, but I first want to

         18  go to my colleagues. First up, Council Member Mike

         19  Nelson.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chair.

         22                 I don't know if anybody else feels

         23  very frustrated about this issue, it seems to be

         24  "deja vu all over again." The importance of

         25  vocational schools has been, you know -- I was in
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          2  School Board District 21, as Bridget knows, and some

          3  others, you know, we were talking about it then, of

          4  course, the school board didn't have any power to

          5  enforce the BOE at that point to do it, so we can't

          6  blame just the DOE for this, because I don't think

          7  enough was there from the BOE even for that matter.

          8  But it's so important for the kids and for society

          9  itself. I mean, there's little doubt in my mind that

         10  we need more kids than we need lawyers, to produce

         11  these students to be able to be -- some of these

         12  kids, they may never know algorithm, but they're

         13  going to know how to build a car or a house, or

         14  whatever. This talent is innately within them and a

         15  little training is all they may need actually. So,

         16  obviously society is extremely important. If we help

         17  these kids out, there's more of a chance they can

         18  obviously be productive members of society. If

         19  they're not given the proper ways to go, we're

         20  looking at problems with that alone.

         21                 Exactly where are we today with this?

         22  Is there anything on the drawing board? Yes, we're

         23  going to open up another school, instead of -- you

         24  have schools that are broken down and 17,000

         25  different schools are going in there, you know, not
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          2  that it's a bad thing, it's probably going to work

          3  out well, but where are we going with more

          4  vocational schools and for various skills as well?

          5                 MR. MULGREW: In the last year the

          6  Department of Ed has -- since we had a Creating

          7  Futures Forum at the UFT last year. Councilman

          8  Addabbo sat on the panel, along with Deputy Mayor

          9  Doctoroff, Deputy Mayor Walcott, Randi Weingarten

         10  and various other people. They are taking a more

         11  sincere look at it.

         12                 It doesn't fit into the plan of what

         13  their vision of the school system is, because it

         14  goes beyond testing. But the reality is that the

         15  students who are attending these schools or

         16  programs, because there is 23 complete CT schools in

         17  New York City, but there's 181 schools who run

         18  various different programs, are out-performing those

         19  students academically that do not. And it goes

         20  beyond the traditional vocational education, as you

         21  just spoke of.

         22                 We have career and tech ed, as we

         23  call it now. We have sequences in law, medical

         24  technology, eyeglass vision, we have a sequence to

         25  learn how to teach. Because we believe it's not --
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          2  it's the idea that you engage the child in something

          3  real and teach them their academics in a classroom,

          4  where they're more interested, rather than you're

          5  sitting in a classroom because you have to pass a

          6  test. And that's why we feel very strongly that the

          7  City, the Department of Ed itself now cannot

          8  disagree with the fact that academically it makes no

          9  sense for what they're trying to do, but it makes no

         10  sense that these kids are doing so much better.

         11  Because they're not getting test prepped, they're in

         12  their shop classes, but they're out-performing the

         13  kids who are.

         14                 So, they're in a little bit of a

         15  quagmire over it, and at this point we're looking to

         16  work more collaboratively about building more

         17  schools and programs. But we don't want to make

         18  mistakes and build programs and schools that aren't

         19  relevant. We don't want to steer children in any

         20  direction that's not going to help them further. And

         21  that's really what this coordination of the industry

         22  needs of the City and what we're doing needs to be

         23  there.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes, there

         25  could be a lag between the jobs that we need and
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          2  what we're doing to obviously affect this positive

          3  change in bringing more of these talented creative

          4  youth into our society.

          5                 MR. OTT: You know, there's a couple

          6  of different things going on in your observation.

          7  One of them is what does the City value as a small

          8  society, how we viewed work.

          9                 You know, we went through a period

         10  after the fiscal crisis in the City where we walked

         11  away from vocational ed, but for many years, like

         12  Food and Maritime High School trains most of the

         13  butchers for the hotel industry of this City and

         14  butchers in general, among many, many other skills.

         15  And it was important because business pays a lot of

         16  the taxes that drive the government side and the

         17  school side, and if the schools are not relevant to

         18  them, their willingness to support them turns up

         19  lacking. You know, and we really need to reestablish

         20  -- no single factor dismantled the vocational ed

         21  system. Some of it was societal values. Organized

         22  labor movement never ambivalent about vocational

         23  schools, career training education. We value work.

         24  We believe all work is dignified and all work should

         25  be fairly compensated. It all contributes to the
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          2  general good. But as people put certain gradations

          3  on jobs, they create care systems. And I think there

          4  was a walk away under the guise of fiscal crisis to

          5  the working class of this City, and let somebody

          6  else do it. Well, that was a bad attitude. And I

          7  actually think, partially because of the good work

          8  of the UFT, members of this Council and others,

          9  there's been a much better discussion in recent

         10  years about what are the education options that

         11  should be offered.

         12                 We can't just say we're preparing 20

         13  percent of kids to go to college and the hell with

         14  everybody else. That's unacceptable. And the truth

         15  is, it promoted inefficiency on the business side.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Absolutely.

         17  And we have a consortium, your union does, of

         18  course, a task force, working together with perhaps

         19  the Council as well to implore the DOE to come up,

         20  craft some of these buildings, if you will, or parts

         21  of buildings, that we will desperately need.

         22                 I don't know if they quite understand

         23  it on the other side or in Tweed or what have you.

         24                 The importance of plumbers, every

         25  type of thing where you can actually make a living,
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          2  instead of being a lawyer for that matter, but

          3  everything up to the best paying skill jobs, like

          4  perhaps the plumbers and others, all the way down to

          5  maybe perhaps the not so skilled, but, again, the

          6  hospitality trade, so many others, that we will not

          7  keep on spinning like a top for that many decades

          8  without them.

          9                 MR. OTT: Yes. And no one values a

         10  home health aid til they need one.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes. We just

         12  had one in my house, by the way. More important at

         13  that point than a plumber.

         14                 MR. OTT: Yes, especially on Sunday.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Certainly than

         16  a lawyer.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council Member

         18  Melissa Mark-Viverito.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: I mean,

         20  the sense of frustration is very clear. Incredibly,

         21  I mean there are so many lost opportunities here,

         22  and the priorities, as you indicated.

         23                 What I'm having difficulty, you know,

         24  wrapping my head around and figuring out how do we

         25  become more efficient and fulfilling. I mean, you
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          2  talk about, we have the Commission on Economic

          3  Opportunity, that one of the aspects of the report

          4  highlights the need to really engage the 18 to

          5  24-year-olds, you know, our young people, our young

          6  adults, to really find ways of engaging them or

          7  doing training and job opportunities, providing them

          8  with the training so that they can get jobs, and,

          9  you know, the vocational training, or what you're

         10  talking about with regards to the Board of

         11  Education, the Department of Education is really an

         12  opportunity to play into that, into the

         13  recommendations of the report, you know, of our

         14  disengaged youth sometimes, and that's one aspect.

         15  And there is the PlaNYC, which is this big hoopla

         16  around, which rightly so, but there is opportunities

         17  there about creating a whole new industry and jobs

         18  created out of it, as you mentioned in your

         19  testimony.

         20                 So, how do we get all of these

         21  different task force reports, all of this work

         22  that's being generated, all of this analysis and all

         23  of the recommendations, how do we get everything to

         24  interrelate. And I think that ultimately is

         25  critical. But I'm particularly concerned about, you

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  know, in my community it's a big issue as well, with

          3  regards to the 18 to 24 year olds, you know, and

          4  finding opportunities for them, to get a good paying

          5  job, and to really engage them and develop their

          6  skills so that they can become part of the job

          7  workforce, the workforce.

          8                 So, I mean, I think that there is

          9  concern here. You've got the Commissioner on

         10  Economic Opportunity, you've got PlaNYC, you've got

         11  the Department of Education and they all seem to not

         12  be speaking to each other, and there has got to be

         13  real opportunities of how you bring all of that work

         14  together to really produce something that we

         15  desperately need in this City.

         16                 So, it continues to be of great

         17  concern and I just don't know how we can, you know,

         18  I'm not here to throw out all the answers, but we've

         19  got to encourage the Administration to really find

         20  ways of implementing this. And I think we at the

         21  Council understand the importance when you look at

         22  the initiatives and what we funded. Because we

         23  really are in tune with our communities and we know

         24  what the needs are. So, we have been able to provide

         25  money for the jobs to build on and workforce
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          2  development training and different opportunities, so

          3  I think that we just need to see how we can build on

          4  that at a Citywide level and make it be a priority

          5  of this Administration and of our budget. So, I

          6  don't know if you want to speak to that a little

          7  bit.

          8                 MR. OTT: Well, one little thing, and

          9  I guess this is advice in general. It's very hard to

         10  engage this as a single piece. It helps if you break

         11  it down into sectors.

         12                 I mean, I really believe there is

         13  this disconnect between the needs of the business

         14  community and some of the things that are being

         15  provided out of the schools. That took 35, 40 years

         16  to occur. It's not something you put back together

         17  overnight. People forget what suburbanization did to

         18  working class communities of this City, but one

         19  thing that they did do, if you take Wall Street,

         20  where there really was for many years no career path

         21  from a community, a working class community of the

         22  City, down to Wall Street because the contact had

         23  gone to the suburbs. Additional relationships that

         24  once existed with a high school in the South Bronx.

         25  When a company, when the executive moved out to the
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          2  suburbs, those contacts went with them, and suburban

          3  kids began to get those jobs that used to go to

          4  inner-city kids. Plus, we lost a million industrial

          5  jobs. So, the whole nature of what was needed went

          6  through dramatic change.

          7                 One of the things we reference in our

          8  testimony was that business in this town to survive,

          9  it's so competitive, constantly reinvents itself. We

         10  have to find flexible systems that allowed education

         11  to adapt more quickly, and exposure at the middle

         12  school level, to the tools, to the basic tools that

         13  are required, whether it be on the white collar side

         14  in management or on the blue collar side where the

         15  first time you see a lade (phonetic) is when you

         16  walk into one of the CTE programs, and you

         17  understand what work really is. That begins at a

         18  very young age, but those contacts grow up with, at

         19  one time if you went to certain schools in the

         20  Bronx, you went to work that summer and after school

         21  at American Home Products. Those relationships were

         22  lost when the Executive core moved out of this City.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Well,

         24  let me ask you a question. I guess my bottom line

         25  question is, you know, do you get a sense in the
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          2  work that each of you is doing, that as a City we

          3  get it? Do we?

          4                 I mean, it seems like the issue is

          5  being studied, but are we implementing it? It seems

          6  like everything caters to Wall Street and, you know,

          7  the white collar jobs, and I'm wondering to what

          8  extent do we really get the need to, you know, to

          9  really comprehensively look at this and address it

         10  from all angles.

         11                 I just feel like we've been studying

         12  an issue but we're not moving or really heading in

         13  the right direction.

         14                 MR. MULGREW: We work with the Career

         15  and Technical Education Advisory Council. It's a

         16  required body. What has happened to it over the

         17  years --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Who is

         19  on that body? Just so you can explain this.

         20                 MR. MULGREW: There's industry,

         21  there's union, there's labor leaders, industry

         22  partners, it's all voluntary. It's supposed to be

         23  directing the schools into the workforce development

         24  needs of the City. It does not work in that capacity

         25  whatsoever. It just works as people who want to
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          2  partner voluntarily with schools. They do a

          3  wonderful work, and that's the area, in terms of the

          4  partnering with the industry people, that's the one

          5  success area we've had because we've kept up the

          6  communication individually. There is no formal

          7  system that this is done inside of. A school will

          8  develop a relationship usually using the UFT as the

          9  conduit to set up some sort of business program or

         10  graphic arts program or something for one of the

         11  local unions, and then they keep that school up to,

         12  they keep it, what it's doing inside of the

         13  classroom, up to the industry needs because every

         14  three years they have to recertify the program so

         15  they have to redevelop the entire curriculum, redo

         16  the equipment, whatever is needed.

         17                 There needs to be a place where this

         18  information is shared. Where people can come and sit

         19  down and have a conversation about what are the

         20  upcoming trends, what is going on.

         21                 Ed reached out to me for Plan 2030.

         22  We're planting a million trees. We have a very

         23  desperate shortage of horticulturists; is anyone

         24  looking at it? Nobody. You know, is there a school

         25  that can deal with this issue? Yes, there is, but

                                                            60

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  they don't know about it. Nobody. You know, if you

          3  live in Queens near John Baum, you know that there

          4  is a school that can deal with this issue, that can

          5  help retool adults, as well as train future workers.

          6                 So, the lack of --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: How can

          8  I ask you, how would you recommend that that --

          9  you're presenting great possibilities. These are

         10  lost opportunities. You know, how do we bank on

         11  that? How do we make this happen, I guess, is the

         12  question.

         13                 MR. MULGREW: From the entities that I

         14  have to work with, I look at my advisory council as

         15  being the place where you have WIB, you have DYCD

         16  and you have these various other workforce

         17  development programs, there has to be a place where

         18  there is a conduit of information that what they're

         19  doing, plus what the trends are from the industry

         20  people, which we have studies, we have people who

         21  are studying the workforce trends in New York City,

         22  we have the State Labor Department. We now have to

         23  ensure that we're looking at these things, so if you

         24  take an advisory council and combine it with some

         25  sort of oversight to make sure that the decisions
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          2  that are being made are correct based on real

          3  information that the people who are doing the work

          4  verify. Because without that, we're going to miss

          5  opportunities or we're going to make mistakes, as we

          6  have in the past.

          7                 MR. OTT: I mean, very briefly, I

          8  actually think it's a little better than it was even

          9  five years ago. Partly because of some of the things

         10  that the Council took initiatives on, which called

         11  attention to who is not working and who is

         12  under-employed and design programs to try to attack

         13  that, work with the Consortium and other groups to

         14  try to get at that, it brings the level of

         15  discussion up. There is also a bit now of a

         16  connection developing again for opportunities on

         17  Wall Street for the kids who go to school in the

         18  City, which is a big piece. But I really honestly

         19  believe that you're not going to turn this around

         20  overnight. Even the 2030, PlaNYC, allows you to look

         21  a quarter of a century ahead and say, well, these

         22  are going to be some of the things we're

         23  concentrating on from the City side and the

         24  industries we're going to emphasize. You know, you

         25  have to put infrastructure in under that in order to
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          2  meet certain goals. It's going to help if we stick

          3  to it. And that's the hard thing. This is not a

          4  society that plans, as much as it responds, and I

          5  think we have to put real commitments, as Mike said,

          6  you know, we need to have this conversation

          7  periodically about what is needed. But you can't do

          8  this without business labor and the community and

          9  government at the table.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: One

         11  last recom -- I mean, maybe you need to figure out,

         12  people who are implementing, you know, both the

         13  Commission on Economic Opportunity and PlaNYC people

         14  that are in implementation of those two plans and

         15  have them on this advisory council. I mean, I don't

         16  know if that would help, but at least there is a way

         17  of discussing and engaging them in what the needs

         18  are and where it's heading, and I think that might

         19  be something that could be looked at as well.

         20                 Because from what I'm gathering, if

         21  I'm correct, you're saying that the advisory group

         22  works, and the vocational schools seem to be

         23  responding to what it's deciding. I mean, that's

         24  what I heard you say. I'm not sure if I'm

         25  misunderstanding it, that some of the schools have
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          2  been able to respond and gear their education and

          3  training to what the advisory group is saying.

          4                 MR. MULGREW: There are only 52

          5  certified TTE programs.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Okay.

          7                 MR. MULGREW: Those programs, the

          8  advisory council works. Because when you have that

          9  program, you have a real partnership.

         10                 The problem is that there is no

         11  entity inside of the Department of Ed for business

         12  to come and partner with the schools. When that

         13  happens there is just usually a lot of frustration

         14  on behalf of the businesses or the unions to go to

         15  the Department of Ed to do it, which is why we've

         16  been doing them outside the Department of Ed, where

         17  we will bring someone to a school, say this is what

         18  we'd like to do, and we set up the partnership, it

         19  works, they're success stories, but it really isn't

         20  the way we should be doing business.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Agreed.

         22  Okay. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 Council Member Gioia.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chair. And thank you, both, for your testimony,

          4  which I agree with wholeheartedly for what you're

          5  doing on this.

          6                 You know, I actually, not only do I

          7  have the Consortium for Worker Education in my

          8  district, but I also have a number of technical

          9  schools. And as you were testifying, I was thinking

         10  about some of the things I've seen, both at the

         11  Consortium and at the schools, and I was thinking

         12  about this robotics class I saw at one of the

         13  schools that was extraordinary, but then I started

         14  to think about a young man I thought of very

         15  recently, and that I went to a plumbing class, and

         16  they were showing me how he was learning, the class

         17  was learning how to fix leaks and things like that,

         18  and this young man said, you know, I buy a washer

         19  for a couple of bucks and at that point, he's 16

         20  years old, and he said I charge people in my

         21  building 25 bucks and I fix their leaky faucet.

         22                 And I thought of him, recently we

         23  bought an old house, and the sink got all clogged

         24  up, and I thought to myself, I wish I knew that

         25  kid's number, I'd call him up. And luckily my Uncle
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          2  Bob is a plumber, so I called him and he came over,

          3  and you know, crisis was averted.

          4                 But I seriously thought about that,

          5  in terms of your testimony, in that these are not,

          6  when you need a plumber and it's midnight, you know,

          7  you can't call Bangelor. You've got to call somebody

          8  locally. And I saw President Clinton this Saturday,

          9  many of us did, and he was talking about green jobs

         10  and green roofs and the question is, well, if we're

         11  going to green all these roofs in New York City, who

         12  are you going to call? And as you begin to think

         13  about the kind of global economy and the economy of

         14  the future, well, it means a lot of different

         15  things. And realistically it means that some jobs

         16  are not here, but it does mean some jobs will be

         17  here, and we've got to plan for that.

         18                 And I think that's a lot of what you

         19  guys are saying. I'm hearing about bringing business

         20  and labor and government to the table. I'm thinking

         21  maybe a task force might be with a finite set of

         22  tasks with the limits, it might be a good idea. But

         23  the question I wanted to ask was this: For some of

         24  these jobs, what kind of wages will these, when they

         25  graduate and they get into the workforce, what kind
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          2  of wages are we talking about them earning?

          3                 MR. OTT: Don't get me started. You

          4  know, the honest answer is it depends. It depends on

          5  if they're going to a unionized sector, or going

          6  into a non-unionized sector. I mean, a big part of

          7  education is, of working and working middle-class

          8  people is culture. And one of the things that we've

          9  not been teaching kids is how to defend themselves.

         10  You know, they go into the workforce totally

         11  unprepared for the realities of even little things

         12  like their basic rights on the job, but what about

         13  big things like health and safety? You know, we need

         14  a greater component that prepares people for real

         15  work and real work in life. The schools do the best

         16  that they can with the resources they have. It

         17  hasn't been emphasized in so many years.

         18                 The rights of workers has got to be a

         19  big part of how we teach democracy to kids. And when

         20  they go into the workforce, they can't go in as

         21  victims. They've got to go in as people who know

         22  that there are certain things that you can do to

         23  protect yourself, one of which is that you have the

         24  right to organize. You know, I see the laborers are

         25  here. You walk into a laborer situation, two types
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          2  of labor situations in this City: One, that's

          3  unionized, where a blue collar person who is willing

          4  to work hard, ends up owning a home, raising a

          5  family, maybe even moving out of the City because

          6  they can actually afford to buy something somewhere

          7  else.

          8                 There's a second kind that's in the

          9  underground economy. People are paid in cash.

         10  Sometimes they're not paid at all. They're totally

         11  exploited, they never get benefits and it's a

         12  dead-end job.

         13                 That's an act of what society is

         14  willing to put up with, and the people who know

         15  their rights exercise them. So, it really does

         16  depend. Just because they've got the skill, it

         17  doesn't mean they're going to get compensated

         18  fairly. Although that young kid who is pulling down

         19  25 an hour fixing washing machines, I think we'll

         20  all be looking for him some day.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: But I think

         22  you're right in that it goes together. It's the

         23  skill to actually do the job, and it's the skill to

         24  know that you have rights. And I think they go, two

         25  sides to the same coin. And I'll tell you, it really
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          2  is, when you think about it, giving people the

          3  skills to actually go out there and help themselves

          4  is, it changes their entire family.

          5                 I think about some of the graduations

          6  I've been to over at CWE, when the entire family is

          7  there and they are so proud, and it's that ability

          8  to be self-reliant, self-sufficient, that is so

          9  vitally important, that not only does it put a

         10  paycheck and food on the table, but it gives that

         11  self-esteem.

         12                 So I commend you and I'm happy to

         13  help any way I can. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         15  Council Member Gioia.

         16                 Council Member Seabrook.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

         18  very much, Mr. Chair.

         19                 First of all, I would certainly like

         20  to commend the Central Labor Council and the UFT in

         21  terms of the work that you have been doing, but I

         22  also think that the challenge that we face in this

         23  City that almost 60 percent of African-American

         24  males between the ages of 18 and 26 years of age are

         25  unemployed in this City and anywhere else, that
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          2  would be the grounds for a revolution, in any other

          3  community.

          4                 So, the challenge for us in the

          5  Council was that something had to be done, and now

          6  we were going to address this issue and labor has

          7  certainly stepped up to the plate and took on the

          8  challenge.

          9                 We talked about all this building,

         10  and a number of things that it's taking place in

         11  this City, this big boom, how we are going to attach

         12  people to jobs. We've allowed all this development

         13  by people who don't even live in this City, that's

         14  working, and people who were born here in this City

         15  can't get a job. And people from Connecticut, each

         16  and every day, they get off that train from

         17  Connecticut, from New Jersey, Pennsylvania, every

         18  one of those sites right down here and they're

         19  working, and people who live here are not working.

         20  And one of the things that I think people need to do

         21  and the Council certainly did, was we've got to make

         22  the rest of the City government put their money

         23  where their mouth is.

         24                 Training isn't cheap, and you've got

         25  to pay for it in order for it to work. Everybody
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          2  wants to do a study on how bad things are, but no

          3  one wants to put any money in because we've

          4  developed a cliche' historical mentality, don't put

          5  any money in it, it's just throwing at bad. That's

          6  the biggest cliche' that we've allowed to become

          7  gospel truth in this town, and we've never spent the

          8  real money to train people, and it becomes a real

          9  problem.

         10                 We should not talk about any

         11  development in this City. We are building stadiums

         12  all over the place. We should have that attached to

         13  training and placement of jobs to deal with this

         14  level of unemployment that we have. We're

         15  subsidizing every stadium that's being built in this

         16  City, every large development we're subsidizing in

         17  this City, and the way in which we will be able to

         18  change this is what you're doing by training and

         19  preparing people to be placed on these jobs, so that

         20  we wouldn't have to have people coming in from

         21  Connecticut, Pennsylvania, New Jersey, and keeping a

         22  level of unemployment in this City. And that's our

         23  goal of what has to be done. But the Mayor has to

         24  step up and put his money where his mouth is as it

         25  relates to training, because they have not put up --
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          2  we committed ourselves to 20 million, we expected

          3  them to put up 20 million as well. So, that we can

          4  make this program work. So, we have shown our

          5  commitment. They have shown us paperwork and

          6  studies. We don't need to know -- we know about

          7  poverty in this City. It never changed since the

          8  Kernal Report (phonetic). The only thing that

          9  changed was the date.

         10                 And, so, what we're looking at is how

         11  best you put the monies into these programs that you

         12  have and make it work and tie it to these jobs that

         13  we're talking about. The greenness of it. We have

         14  yet develop, as you said, the people who have been

         15  able to do these jobs. And you know what we're going

         16  to be doing? We're going to be having special

         17  compensation to import people to come in here to do

         18  special work, to do horticultural work because

         19  nobody else wants to do this type of work, so we've

         20  got to bring them in from all over the other

         21  countries, and that's going to be the shame of this

         22  all until we begin to put the monies in to train

         23  people to do these jobs and attach them to all this

         24  development that's taking place throughout this

         25  City.
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          2                 So, I certainly want to commend you

          3  all for the work that you all have done. And it is

          4  our challenge to take up this fight and make the

          5  other side of this hall put up their monies for this

          6  situation.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          9  Council Member Seabrook. I agree. And just a couple

         10  of things that my colleagues have alluded to that I

         11  would like to build upon:

         12                 Number one, as far as a task force is

         13  concerned, we are going to roll out a piece of

         14  legislation very soon about a proposed workforce

         15  development task force, include people around the

         16  industry and of course the Administration, to work

         17  on these issues subsequent to this hearing. So,

         18  that's something we're going to work on.

         19                 The Committee will also have an

         20  oversight hearing on PlaNYC and what it means as far

         21  as the job market and the need for, again, a better

         22  trained and educated worker for that PlaNYC. So,

         23  that will be an oversight hearing that we will have

         24  in this Committee in 2008.

         25                 Mr. Mulgrew, I am going to need a
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          2  copy of your testimony, the first part, when you get

          3  a chance if you could forward it to the Committee?

          4  I'd appreciate that.

          5                 The five-year plan for the capital

          6  projects for education is obviously very

          7  disappointing. I believe the school that was

          8  mentioned in Queens, the School of Architecture and

          9  Design, Architecture and Engineering, it's right

         10  outside my district. The day that school opened it

         11  was over crowded. But, again, we are always

         12  concerned about the name of the school is

         13  appropriate and is promising and it alludes to a

         14  vocational school. We want to make sure that that's

         15  the curriculum inside the school, that those

         16  students are being taught some type of vocation for

         17  their future jobs.

         18                 So, vocational schools are something

         19  I think we need to focus on subsequent to this

         20  hearing, as well.

         21                 If I can ask this panel, because a

         22  lot of it has to do with funding, what would be your

         23  priorities in the funding? Certainly the programs,

         24  whether they be by trade, by job description? What

         25  would you think would be a priority if we had to
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          2  start allocating money?

          3                 And I want to again, before you

          4  answer, I want to commend you both, not only for the

          5  members and the work that they do, but also your

          6  testimony not only highlighted some of the problems

          7  we need to work on, but some of the suggestions, as

          8  well. And I always appreciate suggestions, but to my

          9  question, where would you like to see the funding

         10  priorities go as we go forward in the budget

         11  process?

         12                 MR. MULGREW: In terms of the

         13  different sequence, in terms of funding priorities,

         14  it is our belief that we need to do it through

         15  collaborating with the community and with the City,

         16  and what the actual needs are.

         17                 I could tell you that most principals

         18  would automatically say I want a computer, I want

         19  information technology. Which is fine, which is

         20  okay, except that we know that the need is not that

         21  great, and a lot of the jobs inside of that industry

         22  are outsourceable. So, it looks nice to most parents

         23  and students, but the reality is that child, if they

         24  are able to get a job in that industry, will be

         25  making a lot less than kids in other industries.
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          2                 So, it has to be done with the

          3  knowledge and data from the industry and also the

          4  job trend needs.

          5                 Green development and construction

          6  obviously is going to be a need. We don't have a

          7  single school who is teaching that at this moment.

          8                 The automotive industry is a constant

          9  need, the Greater New York Automobile Dealers

         10  Association has partnered very, very strongly with

         11  numerous schools because there is a major technician

         12  shortage who do earn six figures after five years,

         13  and that's a continuing shortage area.

         14                 The health care professions is a

         15  major crisis. We have a problem because we cannot,

         16  cannot get qualified teachers. We need nurses, we

         17  need medical technology teachers, that is the

         18  largest need area that we have on the radar right

         19  now, and we cannot develop any more programs because

         20  we don't have the teachers to teach it.

         21                 In terms of teacher retention, I'm

         22  the United Federation of Teachers, I think that

         23  there has to be an allotment for attracting teachers

         24  to this side of the profession. They go out and we

         25  have constant job programs to get math, science and

                                                            76

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  special ed teachers, which is fine. That's great.

          3  But the number one teacher shortage area in the

          4  State of New York is technology teachers.

          5                 So, we have to start bridging that

          6  and say let's have a program where we can get the

          7  teachers in, because we can't build the programs

          8  without the teachers, so that would be the funding

          9  source that I think we should really look at.

         10  Because talking to industry about where we need to

         11  go, because we're not the experts on the industry

         12  trends, we will teach the children who become the

         13  experts.

         14                 MR. OTT: Yes, I actually think what

         15  you want to try to do is work from some guidelines.

         16  You know, the Council took the lead on trying to get

         17  at the hard core unemployed and what were the

         18  reasons for that and put some money up on it.

         19                 This notion of relevancy to what's

         20  happening in a particular industry is really

         21  important. Anticipating trends. Trying to have a

         22  work force on the adult side, and an ability to have

         23  money where employers can draw down to train a

         24  workforce.

         25                 And one of the reasons why workers
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          2  resist change is that they usually feel it's done at

          3  their expense. Employers, rather than invest in

          4  human capital, will throw it out and just buy new.

          5  They'll go, you know, attract labor from wherever

          6  you want to talk, whether it's from the southern

          7  part of the United States, the west or from around

          8  the globe, rather than invest in their workers.

          9                 Part of a good workforce development

         10  plan is to allow existing workers to arrive with the

         11  new. And that's what we're trying to get at at CWE

         12  and the Central Labor Council. We want to keep

         13  workers who are working relevant to the economy and

         14  invest in them going forward and in the same time

         15  get down to the kids and have them prepared for what

         16  the real economy is of the City.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, that is

         18  helpful. And I appreciate obviously the continued

         19  dialogue after this hearing. There being no further

         20  questions, gentlemen, thank you very much.

         21                 The next panel is Sean Brennan, from

         22  Mason Tenders, Jack Kittle from DC 9, and Amy

         23  Peterson, Nontraditional Employment for Women.

         24                 I want to thank this panel for their

         25  time today. Thank you very much.
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          2                 Please state your name, and give your

          3  testimony, please.

          4                 MR. BRENNAN: Good afternoon, Chairman

          5  Addabbo, and distinguished Committee members. My

          6  name is Sean Brennan, and I am Director of the Mason

          7  Tenders District Council Training Fund.

          8                 Our organization serves as the

          9  construction skills, and health and safety training

         10  provider for both Building and Construction

         11  Laborers' Local 79 and Asbestos, Lead and Hazardous

         12  Waste Laborers' Local 78. These locals represent men

         13  and women working throughout the five boroughs, as

         14  building construction laborers, mason tenders,

         15  demolition workers and asbestos and hazardous

         16  material abatement laborers.

         17                 Upon being informed of the subject

         18  matter of today's hearings, I realize that the

         19  discussion in the end will boil down to one simple

         20  coveted word, that word is "opportunity." With your

         21  indulgence, I'll begin by speaking briefly of

         22  something I experienced early in my career.

         23                 Shortly after becoming a union member

         24  I was working on the job as an asbestos abatement

         25  worker in my first week on the job during a break. I
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          2  mentioned to my union shop steward that I'd really

          3  like to be a shop steward in my local one day. He

          4  then turned to me and laughed, saying, you'll never

          5  get anywhere in this local. Your name doesn't end in

          6  a vowel. Clearly he was implying that because I was

          7  Italian, the doors of opportunity were closed to me.

          8  At the time, sadly, that statement was probably

          9  true. How times have changed. Through a series of

         10  very deliberate steps, my union has reinvented

         11  itself from an organization of exclusivity to one of

         12  open opportunity and inclusion. I am privileged to

         13  say that I am a direct beneficiary of that

         14  transformation.

         15                 In my estimation, the single, most

         16  important of those steps was our decision to embrace

         17  the concept of apprenticeship. Many of those who

         18  were denied access in the past are today reaping the

         19  rewards of union membership and opportunities for

         20  good paying jobs and a benefit package that

         21  maintains affordable health care and provides for a

         22  comfortable retirement.

         23                 Apprenticeship access without

         24  available jobs, however, is, in effect, the brass

         25  ring that can never be reached. This City is
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          2  currently in a position to take deliberate steps of

          3  its own, to ensure job opportunities throughout the

          4  construction industry for thousands more residents

          5  looking for a better life.

          6                 Like New York State, Nassau and

          7  Suffolk Counties on Long Island, and many other

          8  counties, towns and municipalities across the State,

          9  New York City could sign into law the requirement

         10  for apprenticeship participation by building

         11  contractors doing work on publicly and may I add,

         12  privately funded projects.

         13                 This measure would have resoundingly

         14  positive effects on apprenticeship recruitment in

         15  the trades.

         16                 To place it in perspective, this past

         17  April Local 79's apprenticeship program held a

         18  recruitment where over 1,700 people applied. Of

         19  those, only approximately 200 will be granted an

         20  opportunity for membership based on the work

         21  available.

         22                 Think of how many more of the 1,700

         23  would be needed to fill positions if all public work

         24  in this City required apprenticeship involvement.

         25  Even with its clear intention of providing
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          2  opportunity to a greater number of New Yorkers,

          3  there are those who would oppose such important

          4  legislation. These opponent s are the same who

          5  routinely place profit first and people last.

          6                 Please do not fall victim to any

          7  argument that suggests apprenticeship language

          8  somehow benefits one group of contractors over

          9  another. Nothing could be further from the truth. In

         10  fact, compelling all contractors to consider

         11  embracing apprenticeship is proven to be both

         12  responsible for the community and profitable for the

         13  companies.

         14                 In closing, it's my hope that the

         15  City Council will not simply remove a barrier but

         16  build a pathway to a career in the building trades

         17  by supporting apprenticeship language in

         18  contracting.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 MS. PETERSON: Thank you. My name is

         23  Amy Peterson. I'm the President of Nontraditional

         24  Employment for Women. Thank you for the opportunity

         25  to speak to the Committee on Civil Service and
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          2  Labor.

          3                 NEW is grateful to the City Council

          4  for its continuing support of our program. City

          5  Council funding for our programs and our City-owned

          6  facility have helped NEW to grow substantially in

          7  the last few years.

          8                 Founded in 1978, Nontraditional

          9  Employment for Women prepares women for careers in

         10  the construction, transportation and utility

         11  industries. NEW's proven model successfully places

         12  women in jobs conventionally held by men and is the

         13  longest running program of its kind in the nation.

         14                 NEW focuses on putting women in

         15  skilled unionized jobs in the blue collar trades

         16  with starting wages averaging $15 per hour, benefits

         17  and a path to higher wage employment. These careers

         18  provide a real opportunity for women to move into

         19  the middle class to support their family.

         20                 NEW primarily serves low-income

         21  minority women. Over the 30 years, NEW graduates

         22  have proven that they can compete and be successful

         23  in these jobs. These women have paved the way for

         24  the next generation of women. Building on their

         25  success, NEW's goal is to increase the percentage of
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          2  women in these careers.

          3                 NEW is partnerhing directly with

          4  unions and employers to make this happen.

          5                 Mayor Bloomberg's Commission on

          6  Construction Opportunity has made a significant

          7  difference for NEW and women interested in

          8  nontraditional careers in New York City.

          9                 As a result of the Commission's

         10  recommendations in October 2005, the Building and

         11  Construction Trades committed to filling ten percent

         12  of their apprentice slots with women for a four-year

         13  period starting in 2006, and the New York State

         14  Department of Labor allowed graduates of

         15  nontraditional employment for women to enter

         16  directly into apprenticeships, thus reducing the

         17  amount of time graduates wait to access such

         18  programs.

         19                 As a result, NEW substantially

         20  increased the number of women placed over the last

         21  two years.

         22                 The Building and Construction Trades

         23  are meeting their commitment to fill ten percent of

         24  their apprentice slots with women, and since the

         25  Commission's recommendations on October 2005, 300
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          2  women have entered apprenticeships in the building

          3  and construction trade.

          4                 The following unions are consistently

          5  placing new graduates in ten percent of the

          6  apprentice class slots.

          7                 New York City District Council of

          8  Carpenters, which succeeded the ten percent, the

          9  International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers,

         10  Local 3, and the International Brotherhood of

         11  Electrical Workers, Local 3, Elevator Maintenance

         12  and Repair Division, Mason Tenders District Council,

         13  Local 79 and Local 78, the International Union of

         14  Painters and Allied Trades, District Council 9, and

         15  the United Association of Plumbers, Local 1.

         16                 New graduates are successful in the

         17  blue collar trades and jobs historically shut down

         18  to women. The model currently being implemented by

         19  NEW, the Building and Construction Trades Unions and

         20  the State Department of Labor, can be replicated for

         21  other trades professions in New York City.

         22                 NEW recruits women that have a high

         23  school diploma or GED and have an interest in blue

         24  collar trades. Each woman enters our free six-week

         25  pre-apprenticeship training program, focusing on the
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          2  construction industry, job readiness, trades math,

          3  hands-on shop classes, health and safety and

          4  fitness.

          5                 NEW places its graduates in union

          6  apprenticeship programs to ensure that new graduates

          7  continue to receive in the classroom and on-the-job

          8  training, that they work in safe conditions and that

          9  they receive benefits, including pensions.

         10                 The story of one recent new graduate

         11  demonstrates the difference that the program can

         12  make in the lives of the women in New York City.

         13                 Soraya had been in drug treatment for

         14  almost a year and lost custody of her children. Her

         15  time was almost up at her residential facility and

         16  she did not have a job. When she began training at

         17  NEW, her drive and aptitude for a career in

         18  construction became evident.

         19                 Every morning she arrived before her

         20  instructors. She didn't know the meaning of the word

         21  "down time." When there was no work to be done in

         22  class, she insisted on doing chores in the building,

         23  such as cleaning the boiler room and stocking the

         24  water coolers.

         25                 As a result of her effort, she
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          2  graduated at the top of her training class and

          3  earned a spot in the New York City District Council

          4  of Carpenters Union Apprenticeship Program.

          5                 She is now employed with a major New

          6  York City based carpentry contractor, making over

          7  $16 an hour and getting ready to move into her own

          8  apartment.

          9                 Women in New York City are ready for

         10  these opportunities. Thanks to the support of the

         11  City Council and Mayor, NEW has the capacity to

         12  serve more and more women each year.

         13                 NEW welcomes additional trade

         14  opportunities. NEW is looking to City Council

         15  members to help us reach out into the neighborhoods

         16  of New York City and attract women to our program.

         17  NEW needs to specifically focus on underserved areas

         18  of the City. In the last five years we've grown from

         19  an organization of training 150 women a year to an

         20  organization training 350 women a year. We're

         21  expanding our program and expect to enroll 400 women

         22  this year.

         23                 There are limited opportunities for

         24  poor and minority women to obtain secure jobs that

         25  provide a living wage and an essential benefit, such
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          2  as health insurance. Eighty-five percent of the

          3  women NEW services identify themselves as

          4  minorities. NEW serves women on public assistance,

          5  unemployment, women with housing issues, single

          6  heads of households and women living in poverty.

          7                 NEW serves women from all five

          8  boroughs in New York City and the surrounding

          9  counties.

         10                 With the ongoing support of the

         11  Mayor's Commission on Construction Opportunities,

         12  unions and the New York City Council, NEW will

         13  continue to grow and help hundreds more women change

         14  their lives each year, while eliminating stereotypes

         15  and expanding career opportunities for women.

         16                 MR. KITTLE: Thank you, Chairman

         17  Addabbo. No members left to the Committee. My name

         18  is Jack Kittle. I am with the Painters and Allied

         19  Trades Union, District Council 9, and if you don't

         20  mind, as always, I'm going to go off script. I'll

         21  hand in what I wrote down, but I just want to

         22  comment on some of the things I've heard earlier

         23  today.

         24                 The first one is, like Council Member

         25  Mark-Viverito, I read the title of the hearing when
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          2  I got the invitation in the mail and it said

          3  something about pathways to trade professions. So, I

          4  thought it meant we were going to talk about how

          5  young people can enter the trade, and then I heard

          6  the Administration talk about executive training and

          7  computer training and management training, and I

          8  wonder if they understand what exactly is involved.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Let me clear

         10  that up right away. Unfortunately, those who were to

         11  testify today from the Administration could not make

         12  it. DCAS pinch-hitted for them.

         13                 MR. KITTLE: Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So, I gave them

         15  a pass on that. DCAS, at least acknowledging the

         16  work that they do for all the employees currently.

         17  So, they added just a different perspective to the

         18  hearing.

         19                 MR. KITTLE: That's better. I thought

         20  I was in the wrong room when I was listening to

         21  them. Okay.

         22                 All right, and then the first thing I

         23  think, when we talk about barriers to entering the

         24  trades, we start off with a couple of misperceptions

         25  that are very common and I think that doesn't help
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          2  the conversation. And the first misperception, as

          3  was alluded to by the prior two speakers, is that

          4  somehow the recruitment practices of the Building

          5  Trades are exclusive, and I think if anybody -- I

          6  mean, you, yourself, Councilman Seabrook, have been

          7  to our training center, I will tell you that we are

          8  better than 75 percent minority. I think that's a

          9  false perception that everybody seems to have out

         10  there, and perhaps allows people to not help us, to

         11  want to throw roadblocks at us.

         12                 The second misperception that I think

         13  is very common is that the Building Trades is a

         14  dumping ground for the unemployable. And because of

         15  that, we tend to get candidates that are doomed to

         16  failure before they start.

         17                 Now, I think one of the answers to

         18  that is not necessarily throwing more money at the

         19  Public School System, because our history of

         20  candidates that come straight out of public schools

         21  is absolutely miserable. We have a horrible

         22  retention rate.

         23                 The thing that we ought to be looking

         24  at more is we have these preapprenticeship programs

         25  that do a great job. NEW is one of them. Helmets to
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          2  Hard Hat is one, and Construction Skills 2000. Send

          3  the candidates that are ready to come into the

          4  construction trades, at least I'll speak for my

          5  trade anyway, ready to come into the Painters Union,

          6  it's not -- what is it, 12 weeks on average or so

          7  these programs are? And they really prepare kids to

          8  enter our trade.

          9                 And the answer to Pathways to

         10  Opportunities in the Trades, it might be in the

         11  private sector. I don't want to sound like a

         12  republican. Sorry if I do. But maybe the answer is

         13  not throwing more money at public entities but let's

         14  support, let's encourage the private sector, trade

         15  specific apprenticeship programs. That's where the

         16  people really learn the trade that they're going to

         17  be able to feed themselves for the rest of their

         18  life, send their kids to college and they'll have a

         19  better life.

         20                 The other thing I heard today, and

         21  I've been hearing this for over 30 years that I've

         22  been in the trade, is that there is a shortage of

         23  skilled workers. We read that from time -- not every

         24  year, but periodically it comes up and, yet, we

         25  still have workers, skilled workers out of work,
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          2  when we have an apprenticeship recruitment, we get

          3  six or 700 people come. I don't remember ever seeing

          4  that actually come true, and that might be another

          5  barrier, that stops people from supporting what

          6  we're doing. I can't even read my own things here.

          7                 Okay, here's the thing at the end of

          8  the day, the real barrier that you have, is in the

          9  construction industry today where it's booming,

         10  nobody will argue that. There's many new projects

         11  going up. We tend to be supporting more and more

         12  low-road contractors that are willing to pay their

         13  workers off the books, and live outside the system.

         14                 Those are not pathways to a career.

         15  People working on those jobs are entering a dead

         16  end. We have got to somehow, whether we can put

         17  language in about apprenticeship, somehow we have to

         18  stand-up to these low-road contractors. At least

         19  shine the light on what they're doing, force them to

         20  pay their workers on the books, maintain some sort

         21  of safe conditions on the job, and then the union

         22  contractors can compete, and that's a barrier that

         23  needs to be knocked down. That will allow us to take

         24  in many, many more people and where it's going

         25  today, the contractors that are operating in the
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          2  outer boroughs, at some point are going to be right

          3  here in Manhattan with the large buildings and your

          4  union apprentice programs will be going into

          5  extinction.

          6                 Right now you have the choice of

          7  which way you want to go with it. So, to me, there's

          8  two things you can do to break down the barriers:

          9  One, shine the light on those type of contractors;

         10  and the other one is, you know, support the private

         11  sector apprenticeship programs, and the

         12  preapprenticeship programs. And I will turn in what

         13  I wrote down.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Please. I

         15  appreciate that. And true about the misconception of

         16  these trade jobs. They're not menial, they're not

         17  dirty, they're not non-intellectual. These are real

         18  good jobs out there and obviously how do we push,

         19  again, a better trained, educated person to these

         20  trade jobs.

         21                 That was some of the feedback that I

         22  had gotten earlier while forming this Committee,

         23  this hearing, was that the workers that are coming

         24  forward aren't the best trained, aren't the best

         25  educated possibly, so how can we look at that?
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          2  Again, that's collectively what we're going to try

          3  and work on and with the Administration after this

          4  hearing. So, again, I appreciate that point of view.

          5                 To this panel, what do we need to do,

          6  in your opinion, to promote these apprenticeship

          7  programs, to increase participation in the

          8  apprenticeship programs? Maybe improve the

          9  apprenticeship programs themselves? What do we need

         10  to do?

         11                 MR. BRENNAN: I think to a great

         12  degree I mentioned it during my presentation, that

         13  you have the ability to create jobs for these

         14  individuals. You have the ability to create openings

         15  in these apprenticeship programs, simply by making

         16  certain that those contractors who do do work within

         17  the City are participating in it.

         18                 The more jobs there are available,

         19  the more of that 1,700 that I spoke of, could be in

         20  Local 78 or Local 79 today. We are constantly

         21  looking for ways to find more work for our people.

         22  We want to be careful not to bring in too many

         23  apprentices. It's the worst case scenario to have

         24  plenty of apprentices but no work for them. You want

         25  to discourage somebody, put them on a list and tell
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          2  them, well, when we get 100 jobs, since you're

          3  number 101, when we have 100 jobs, when we get to

          4  you it may be six months from now, but you'll have

          5  work. So, what are they supposed to do in the next

          6  six months?

          7                 The one opportunity that you have as

          8  a City Council is to provide those job

          9  opportunities.

         10                 MR. KITTLE: Sean is exactly right. We

         11  operate in the private sector, fund ourselves, and

         12  have no problem recruiting and no problem delivering

         13  trained workers to the employers that use them.

         14                 Our problem is, as Sean says, we will

         15  never take a person in, ask him to spend money to

         16  join the union and then we can't offer him

         17  employment in the foreseeable future, and right now

         18  with the PlaNYC 2030, all construction that's

         19  happening, if we would be looking just at the

         20  affordable housing sector, for example, just that

         21  one sector, thousands of more jobs available to

         22  young people and we could bring them in, and we're

         23  happy to bring them in, but not if we don't have

         24  anything to offer them.

         25                 MR. BRENNAN: I'd just like to say one
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          2  thing. I look around this room today, and I see so

          3  many familiar faces, because we constantly cooperate

          4  with one another. We're always in contact, whether

          5  it be Committee meetings or situations like today,

          6  or with nontraditional employment to women, we're in

          7  contact with them constantly to help bring these

          8  women into the building trades. It's important that

          9  the City understands that we're willing to do

         10  whatever it takes to take these individuals and give

         11  them real job opportunities, career opportunities.

         12  You talk about professions, that's exactly what we

         13  offer them. But the jobs have to be there first. And

         14  it was a great point. This isn't going to cost the

         15  City a dime. We provide the training, it's

         16  self-funded.

         17                 MS. PETERSON: I'd just like to say,

         18  as Nontraditional Employment for Women, we're not

         19  union affiliated. We are trying to take women who

         20  don't have opportunities in nontraditional jobs. And

         21  as the people who do that, we train these women and

         22  they need to have good wages, they need to be

         23  trained, they need to continue to be trained, we

         24  train them for six weeks. They need to learn and

         25  have on-the-job training. They need to have
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          2  classroom training. They need to work in an

          3  environment that's safe, and they need to have

          4  benefits. They need to have a future. They need to

          5  be able to support their children and have health

          6  benefits. The place to do that is through the union

          7  apprenticeship program.

          8                 We couldn't go to or send a woman to

          9  another program that doesn't have all those things.

         10  So, we're very supportive of the union

         11  apprenticeship program and we'd like to see more

         12  work that is done in the City go towards those

         13  people.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: To that point,

         15  Ms. Peterson, I'm happy to see that, again,

         16  collectively there is conversation and cooperation

         17  amongst the unions and even, you know, your entity

         18  as well. That's what we're hoping to do, if we ever

         19  get to formulate this workforce development task

         20  force, the more cooperation, more input we have from

         21  industry, from union, from all others looking to

         22  employ others, hopefully that kind of conversation

         23  could promote and improve what we have.

         24                 So, again, I do think we need to work

         25  on the apprenticeship programs, promoting them and
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          2  so forth, but I think collectively we have to do it,

          3  to find out what are the needs. That was brought up

          4  earlier, what are the needs of the City and how can

          5  we fill those needs job-wise.

          6                 So, there being no other questions, I

          7  want to thank this panel for their time and

          8  testimony today. Thank you very much.

          9                 I see in the Chambers here we have

         10  State Senator Diane Savino. State Senator. After the

         11  State Senator we will be joined at the witness table

         12  by James Conway and Nicholas LaGuardia.

         13                 Thank you very much. And thank you

         14  for your time today, Senator Savino.

         15                 SENATOR SAVINO: Thank you. I want to

         16  thank Councilman Addabbo and the entire Civil

         17  Service and Labor Committee for holding today's

         18  hearing and giving me the opportunity to address one

         19  of the most crucial issues that our economy is

         20  facing.

         21                 How do we begin to prepare today's

         22  youth for tomorrow's workforce.

         23                 Currently, in New York City there are

         24  about 200,000 young people between the ages of 16

         25  and 24 that are neither working nor in school. This
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          2  is only in the City of New York. When we add the

          3  thousands of other young people throughout the State

          4  with no jobs and limited schooling, we begin to see

          5  that we are developing an army of disenfranchised

          6  who have no hope of moving ahead, nor the

          7  preparation to do so.

          8                 As baby boomers begin to retire in

          9  key industry, the question begs, will we have

         10  qualified people to fill these jobs? And then what

         11  can we as legislators do to ensure that we not only

         12  provide economic opportunities for our youth, but

         13  also that our economy is not negatively impacted,

         14  simply because we did not adequately prepare our

         15  workforce.

         16                 As aging workers in a number of key

         17  industries retire over the next ten to 15 years,

         18  they will leave behind jobs that require a wide

         19  range of skill and educational requirements, but not

         20  necessarily a college degree.

         21                 By creating opportunities for the

         22  specialized training they will need for these

         23  positions, we can help put them on a path to fill

         24  those jobs and succeed in the 21st Century labor

         25  market.
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          2                 One way to do so is to invest in

          3  technical and vocational education, especially in

          4  the job fields that are projected to grow. And as we

          5  move into an economy with emphasis on service and

          6  technical jobs, there will be increased need for

          7  specialized training to fill these positions.

          8                 These include health care, aviation,

          9  manufacturing and technical jobs and as we've heard,

         10  the construction and building trades.

         11                 Therefore, we must invest in programs

         12  that reflect the realities of our changing

         13  economies.

         14                 The Career and Technical Education or

         15  CTE programs have an excellent track record in

         16  providing our students with the skills needed to

         17  compete. As you've already heard from earlier

         18  testimony there are 22 CTE high schools in New York

         19  City, they serve 28,000 students and an additional

         20  188 comprehensive high schools and CTE training

         21  centers.

         22                 In sum, there is about 500 of these

         23  centers, separate programs, and that's part of the

         24  problem. In my district we have one of the premier

         25  CTE programs in New York City, McKee High School. We
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          2  have a state-of-the-art robotics program there,

          3  where the students have won statewide competitions

          4  for four years in a row. They have a wonderful what

          5  they call "woodshop," where they train people in

          6  carpentry. Nobody knows about this school.

          7                 The principal there, her name is

          8  Sharon Henry, she is forced on her own to go out and

          9  seek funding and seek to develop relationships with

         10  local businesses, whether they be in the robotics

         11  industry or with other universities. There is no

         12  central body within the Department of Education that

         13  directs these principals, and, unfortunately,

         14  vocational schools, or the CTE schools, are almost

         15  viewed as remedial education. They are not

         16  encouraged in the intermediary schools or the

         17  primary schools, and kids are shifted there when

         18  they feel they are not capable of learning.

         19                 Those who haven't dropped out yet.

         20                 That is a mistake, because what we've

         21  seen with these students, particularly at McKee,

         22  when you give them additional instruction, you give

         23  them the necessary training that they need, their

         24  academic scores immediately rise and we see what the

         25  potential that these young people really have.
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          2                 That's what we should be doing more

          3  of in government. Our programs are vital and they're

          4  critical for young people. Unfortunately, it's not

          5  just about money. You know, we'd like to think if we

          6  just throw enough money at programs, things will

          7  improve. CTE schools are typically underfunded, they

          8  get about $750 per student. Some of these schools

          9  are difficult to get to, and we don't provide the

         10  same busing and transportation for students who want

         11  to attend these schools.

         12                 Obviously, I support CTE funding.

         13  Increasing the funding, and that's something that we

         14  in government can do together.

         15                 But there's something else that we

         16  can do, and in my role as a State Senator, I'd like

         17  to address it.

         18                 What we need to do is address the

         19  issue of oversight and coordination on the State

         20  level that would improve the effectiveness of the

         21  programs. As we said, there are over 200 entities

         22  providing vocational training in New York City and

         23  hundreds more throughout the State. However, there

         24  is little coordination and oversight of any of these

         25  programs.

                                                            102

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 Furthermore, there is little

          3  administrative support for the schools. According to

          4  the City Comptroller's report, high school

          5  principals at the CTE schools say they have no

          6  assistance from the Department of Education, as I've

          7  testified on McKee High School in my district, they

          8  have virtually no assistance. They do not get any

          9  assistance at developing partnerships with private

         10  industries, they're left to their own devices, and

         11  that is a problem.

         12                 Ed Ott, in his earlier testimony,

         13  talked about one of the things that we can do is

         14  encourage relationships between industry and the

         15  industries that these schools are training for and

         16  the actual schools themselves.

         17                 As we pointed out, we've lost

         18  millions of manufacturing jobs in New York City,

         19  they're not coming back. So we have to prepare for

         20  the next wave of jobs. We know that many of them are

         21  in the building and construction trades, we know

         22  that many of them are in the hotel industry. We know

         23  that many of them are in the service industry.

         24                 We need to rebuild connections

         25  between business and those schools in those
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          2  industries.

          3                 We also need a state entity that will

          4  focus and coordinate these efforts and serve as a

          5  single point of contact for employers, educational

          6  institutions, and other stake holders that want to

          7  get involved.

          8                 Over the past few years, grant makers

          9  and policy thinkers have moved toward consensus on

         10  the value of launching a workforce development

         11  intermediary, explicitly designed and staffed to

         12  serve the needs of City youth. As part of that work,

         13  the intermediary would help provide organizations,

         14  build capacity, learn about and implement best

         15  practices, highlight successes, partner with

         16  industry actors to build pathways of career

         17  development within specific industries of need, and

         18  advocate for more resources, more resources and more

         19  resources, and, of course, support from community at

         20  all levels of government.

         21                 So, I would hope that my colleagues

         22  in the City Council would partner with us and the

         23  State Legislature to create this separate entity, to

         24  have oversight over these programs, because as we've

         25  already heard in testimony all day, they're not just
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          2  vitally important to the students who are falling

          3  through the cracks, they are vitally important to

          4  the economic future of the City and the State of New

          5  York.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Senator Savino,

          8  thank you very much. I look forward to working with

          9  you on that. And I believe you are right, the

         10  coordination on the State level and on the City

         11  level definitely needs to be improved. And that's

         12  going to be a positive step that we'll take forward.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 SENATOR SAVINO: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Our next panel,

         16  James Conway, from Local 14-14B, and Nicholas

         17  LaGuardia from the Elevator.

         18                 I want to acknowledge also that the

         19  Administration is still in the room and I want to

         20  thank them for being here and listening to our

         21  concerns, and again, we look forward to working with

         22  them as we find possible solutions to these issues

         23  today.

         24                 Gentlemen, thank you very much for

         25  being here today. Just please state your name and
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          2  give your testimony.

          3                 MR. LaGUARDIA: My name is Nick

          4  LaGuardia. My name is Nick LaGuardia. I am the

          5  Director of the International Brotherhood of

          6  Electrical Workers, Local Union No. 3, Elevator

          7  Division, and I want to thank the Council and Mr.

          8  Addabbo for allowing me to speak today.

          9                 I am not going to give a prepared

         10  speech, in order to put through some points that I

         11  think I must join with, and that was the other

         12  members who spoke before me. I want to join them in

         13  illustrating exactly the same sort of ideas that

         14  these people put before you.

         15                 We, as an industry, as a service

         16  industry providing an apprenticeship program for

         17  elevator service repair and modernization mechanics

         18  in the City of New York. Elevator, escalator

         19  mechanics, electrical workers, the Department of

         20  Building and Maintenance Division of the IBEW, and

         21  many other trades and programs that the IBEW

         22  supports.

         23                 Now, we were in partnership with a

         24  high school up on the West Side called Park West

         25  High School for almost 16 years. And they had a
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          2  vertical transportation apprenticeship program, and

          3  those apprentices came into our industry when they

          4  graduated that four-year vocational program as

          5  second-year apprentices. Starting salaries today are

          6  approximately $17.50 an hour.

          7                 In 2003, 2004, the Board of Education

          8  decided to close that program, and we were out of a

          9  school. So, for three years we floundered around at

         10  different places within the City of New York, and

         11  Mr. Mulgrew was kind enough to contact me and bring

         12  me to Queens Vocational Technical High School.

         13                 Queens Vocational Technical High

         14  School has an electrical program and they now have

         15  an elevator program, and I'm pleased to say that

         16  that partnership, although it just started in

         17  September, I have been approved by the State of New

         18  York to have those apprentices come in as

         19  second-year apprentices. And, again, their starting

         20  salary would be $17.50 an hour.

         21                 Currently we have an apprenticeship

         22  program that has about 250 to 300 people. We're

         23  recruiting as we speak right now, and that's the

         24  reason I don't have a prepared speech, because I did

         25  interviews yesterday for about 300 individuals.
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          2                 But at the end of the four-year

          3  program, the average starting salary, and I'll just

          4  throw a couple of them out, chemical engineering,

          5  electrical engineering, computer engineering,

          6  computer science, mechanical engineering, aerospace,

          7  industrial engineering, accounting, civil

          8  engineering, economics, finance, business

          9  administration, teaching, nursing, marketing and

         10  liberal arts.

         11                 If I told you which program was, and

         12  those are all four-year college graduates, if I told

         13  you what our apprenticeship program and where it

         14  sits in that list, okay, we are second. Chemical

         15  engineering is the only four-year degree that's

         16  above a JATC four-year apprentice, and they're at

         17  54,256, and we're at 52,020, as of 2/27/07. And our

         18  individuals don't line up with $100,000 worth of

         19  loans to pay off to go to college. They work during

         20  the day. The starting salary right now is $15.01,

         21  and it goes up to $25.01 upon graduation, and that

         22  equates to about $52,000. Most of them at the end of

         23  that four years are already journeymen, so they're

         24  making $80,000.

         25                 The Board of Education, and the
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          2  Vocational Educational Program, I represented the

          3  New York State Department of Labor on an apprentice

          4  conference on the Eastern Seaboard, as well as one

          5  in California, and I was outraged at the fact that

          6  most of the guidance counselors, and most of the

          7  Board of Education supervisors throughout this

          8  country felt that anyone that could not get high

          9  grades on an SAT should go into vocational

         10  educational training. That was an insult, that was

         11  an outrage and that was something that I was not

         12  going to allow to maintain itself. So, I objected to

         13  it, and Randi Weingarten was kind enough to hear

         14  that speech and brought be before the UFT to echo

         15  what I had said there, and she also encompasses the

         16  fact that vocational educational training, in the

         17  intermediate school, in the secondary school, in the

         18  primary schools, if you give an individual something

         19  to do in the course of the day, besides sitting

         20  behind the desk and having someone speak at him, not

         21  to him, someone speak at him, until he falls asleep

         22  or decides not to come tomorrow, okay? Then and only

         23  then will we be able to have a skilled trade.

         24                 If you change the perception by mom

         25  and dad, called in by the guidance counselor that
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          2  says Jonny is not going to do well and can't go to

          3  college, so his only choice is to either get a GED

          4  and find a job for five or six or seven dollars an

          5  hour, if he can, okay? But there is no other career

          6  opportunity. That, too, is an outrage.

          7                 Most of the owners of the elevator

          8  contractors, all 40 of them in the City of New York,

          9  million dollar contracting companies, that do 50,

         10  60, 70 million dollars worth of elevator

         11  modernization and construction work, were previous

         12  apprentices. They didn't drop out of the sky. It

         13  wasn't left to them by their father. They started

         14  out as an apprentice, they worked as a journeyman,

         15  they worked as a helper, and, yes, it is dirty, and,

         16  yes, it is dangerous, and, yes, these things have to

         17  be done. Because if you don't do them, you can't --

         18  look around, there isn't a building going up that

         19  isn't above 20 stories. Nobody has an idea of how

         20  they're going to get those people upstairs, nobody

         21  has developed something else other than an elevator.

         22  So, while I have my own interest at heart, I must

         23  ask that the City Council undertake an idea that I

         24  thought of when I was sitting there, because I kept

         25  asking, well, how can we do this?
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          2                 Well, unfortunately, the State

          3  Apprenticeship Council is the State Apprenticeship

          4  Council. Most of the apprentices are in the City of

          5  New York. Most of the apprentice directors are in

          6  the City of New York. Why don't we establish a New

          7  York City Apprenticeship Council, that can sit down

          8  with the Board of Education, sit down with business,

          9  sit down with labor, sit down with Council members,

         10  and make them understand that, yes, apprenticeship

         11  should be included in all City contracts, public and

         12  private.

         13                 The Mayor's Initiative on

         14  Construction Opportunity, okay? While that said

         15  construction, that Committee has now agreed to

         16  undertake service, repair and modernization, because

         17  most of those contracts are in excess of a million

         18  dollars, okay? They're not small contracts. The

         19  Empire State Building, the Woolworth Building, those

         20  modernization contracts are 20, 30 million dollars,

         21  okay? Those should be done by apprentices.

         22  Apprenticeship should be required to be on those

         23  jobs, because if you don't train them in City and

         24  public and private work, 20 years from now, you're

         25  not going to have those people anymore, okay?
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          2                 Where are my apprentices coming from

          3  now? I'm sorry to say, most of the people that

          4  achieve the passing grade on the aptitude tests are

          5  Eastern Europeans and Asian educated, okay? Not that

          6  there's anything wrong with that, but why aren't our

          7  students that graduate high school able to pass a

          8  ninth grade math test, a reading comprehension test

          9  that is equal to the Daily News, and not that there

         10  is anything wrong with the Daily News, but if you

         11  can read a newspaper, you can pass a comprehension

         12  test, okay? These individuals don't fair well.

         13  Because no one gave them the self-respect and the

         14  idea that if they got a blue collar, they will be

         15  better off than the guy that's the accountant or the

         16  guy in the computer technology industry that's

         17  competing with somebody in India, Pakistan and

         18  Southern Hemisphere, okay, for those service jobs,

         19  okay?

         20                 We must employ the people here. So,

         21  put a Committee together, put it with apprentice

         22  directors. Enforce apprenticeship on all contracts

         23  in the City of New York. Because we train the

         24  people, we don't ask for a penny.

         25                 I have the opportunity to join with
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          2  the Mayor's Small Business Administration to get a

          3  30 or 40,000 dollar grant to help train journeymen,

          4  okay? I don't need that. The union and the industry

          5  is willing to pay for that. We do it all the time.

          6                 There is now a bill up in Albany to

          7  have a ten-hour OSHA safety requirement on every

          8  worker on every City project. Hooray, okay? We do

          9  training anyway. We do safety training. At the end

         10  of four years, our four-year apprentices have 24

         11  hours of OSHA safety training, okay? That's where

         12  the money ought to be spent. Spend it on putting

         13  together the schools that enable these students to

         14  come out of New York City High Schools, as people

         15  that will be able to service the industry and the

         16  infrastructure in the City of New York.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

         18  LaGuardia.

         19                 Mr. Conway.

         20                 MR. CONWAY: Good afternoon, Mr.

         21  Chairman. My name is James Conway. I'm with the

         22  International Union of Operating Engineers, Local

         23  14-B, who has an approved registered apprenticeship

         24  program with the State of New York since 1994.

         25                 It is a strong goal of Local 14 to
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          2  recruit women, minorities, veterans, economically

          3  disadvantaged persons into our program.

          4                 In order for us to make this good

          5  faith effort, I am going to give you my input on how

          6  our apprenticeship program can be a viable part of

          7  the construction industry.

          8                 Registered apprenticeship programs

          9  that follow strict guidelines and standards can meet

         10  two objectives. First, it provides an equal and fair

         11  opportunity for New York City residents to find

         12  employment on Publics Works projects that require

         13  skills. Second, apprenticeship training reduces

         14  workplace accidents and improves public safety.

         15                 These undertakings are the foundation

         16  of apprenticeship which will, in the long-term, make

         17  our economy strong. Issues such as construction jobs

         18  for City residents can only be addressed by

         19  apprenticeship training. In order to transfer

         20  unemployed City residents into occupations,

         21  well-rounded apprenticeship training must be

         22  available.

         23                 Patch and repair solutions for social

         24  inequities will not solve employment problems.

         25  Operating Engineers Local 14 has been making
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          2  constructive efforts to accommodate the needs of

          3  protective group members.

          4                 We are building a reputation to

          5  enhance the progress of all those who are

          6  participating in our program, therefore, a strong

          7  apprenticeship program will give a citizen the

          8  skills to give oneself a substantial career.

          9                 Most industrial accidents are caused

         10  by complex epidemiological interaction of labor,

         11  equipment and workplace, such as workers'

         12  carelessness, inattentiveness or lack of training.

         13  The rebuttal to this concerted argument is

         14  apprenticeship training. If each crafts person

         15  successfully completed an apprenticeship program,

         16  you could make the workplace less ominous. Also,

         17  construction sites will be safer for the general

         18  public that are in the vicinity.

         19                 In order for apprenticeship programs

         20  to have validity, it must have three levels of

         21  effectiveness: related instructions, supplemented

         22  instructions, and on-the-job training.

         23                 Related instructions are a series of

         24  lectures that emphasize the knowledge, skills,

         25  abilities and other characteristics that are
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          2  considered important to successful work performance.

          3                 These subjects, which are covered in

          4  the classroom, orientates the apprentice to a

          5  variety of areas which are unlikely to be learned on

          6  the job.

          7                 Therefore, apprentices must attend

          8  these organized instructions, in order to learn the

          9  many standardized operating procedures and how their

         10  trade is applied to the construction industry.

         11                 Supplemental instructions on the

         12  tools, equipment and machines, which involve the

         13  skills that are sufficiently broad enough to be

         14  applicable to the operating engineers trade are

         15  given.

         16                 This takes place at a training site.

         17  It is known as behavioral role modeling. This is

         18  where the apprentice observes and models the skills

         19  of a journeyperson. The apprentice is afforded the

         20  opportunity to transfer this training to the actual

         21  work setting.

         22                 Supplement instructions is in a

         23  controlled environment which creates a safer

         24  training for the industry.

         25                 The final category is on-the-job
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          2  training, which involves coaching and mentoring.

          3  Coaching consists of journey persons periodically

          4  providing apprentice with feedback and advice

          5  concerning their job performance.

          6                 Mentoring is where a journey person

          7  takes an apprentice under their wing. A substantial

          8  amount of evidence suggests that having a mentor can

          9  facilitate successful psychosocial outcomes and lead

         10  to journey person status. On-the-job training

         11  provides instructions precisely where it's applied.

         12  This gives the apprentice great exposure to the work

         13  environment.

         14                 These three categories are

         15  intercorrelated, and if linked effectively, attain

         16  better job and skill performance for New York City

         17  residents.

         18                 Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you for

         19  taking the time out to assess the effectiveness of

         20  apprenticeship programs. It is a very complex

         21  undertaking. Hopefully, the City Council can examine

         22  the design of programs and address any contaminating

         23  variables.

         24                 Your research on apprenticeship

         25  programs should successfully reduce, control or
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          2  eliminate any threats to apprenticeship trainings

          3  validity.

          4                 Operating Engineers Local 14 will

          5  never justify reluctance or refusal to evaluate our

          6  program. Therefore, if you would like us to

          7  demonstrate the competency of our apprenticeship

          8  training program, please do not hesitate to contact.

          9                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         11  much, Mr. Conway.

         12                 Mr. Conway, I also appreciate

         13  something that is true for this panel and every

         14  other panel, as we talk about these apprenticeship

         15  programs and turning out a better worker, it does

         16  make the workplace environment a safer place. So, it

         17  is definitely for public safety, and obviously

         18  lending itself to doing the job right the first

         19  time. So, that is the ultimate goal of, again, a

         20  credible apprenticeship program, and hopefully we

         21  can work on that in the future.

         22                 Mr. LaGuardia, the New York City

         23  Apprenticeship Council, that is something I hope the

         24  proposed workforce development task force that this

         25  Committee will propose takes, you know, how do we as
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          2  a New York City entity, work out apprenticeship

          3  programs dealing with New York City construction.

          4  So, I appreciate your input there as well.

          5                 Thank you very much, gentlemen. I

          6  appreciate your time and your testimony.

          7                 MR. LaGUARDIA: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: The last panel

          9  for today, Thomas Cassino, Jack Powers, and Henry

         10  Kita. I thank this panel for their patience today.

         11  We end the hearing hopefully on a high note with

         12  your testimony. So, please state your name and give

         13  your testimony.

         14                 MR. CASSINO: My name is Thomas

         15  Cassino. I'm an instructor at Automotive High School

         16  in Brooklyn, New York for the past 23 years. This is

         17  the testimony how Automotive High School is dealing

         18  with the employability and education skills needed

         19  for our students.

         20                 I previously owned three automotive

         21  repair shops on Long Island and one in Florida. In

         22  1985, I sold my share of the businesses to my

         23  partners. Because we could not build shops with

         24  qualified, dependable mechanics, the technology was

         25  changing and there was no one to fill the void.
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          2                 I came to Automotive High School in

          3  order to placate my wife who told me at the ripe old

          4  age of 35 you can't play golf and go fish while I

          5  work. Now, she's a retired teacher of 34 years.

          6                 I realized after one day of teaching

          7  that this was what I was born to do. The

          8  satisfaction I get from teaching my crafty young

          9  people is priceless.

         10                 Automotive High School offers our

         11  students an excellent opportunity path in automotive

         12  technology. We prepare our interns and graduates to

         13  enter a career that offers both high pay and

         14  advancement opportunities.

         15                 The program also provides our

         16  graduates with the foundation for entering

         17  post-secondary automotive technology programs and

         18  colleges.

         19                 Current automotive technology

         20  requires that technicians have much higher skill

         21  levels in order to repair today's complex

         22  automobiles. Automotive High School provides work

         23  side experiences from ninth grade to 12th grade.

         24                 The majority of students entering our

         25  school arrive with major academic deficiencies.

                                                            120

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  Students with disabilities make up 24 percent of our

          3  population. These students also deserve an education

          4  and access to career paths that will provide them

          5  with employment and self-sufficiency in their adult

          6  lives.

          7                 Eighty-four percent of our entering

          8  freshmen class reads at least three grade levels

          9  below the State standard. The program at automotive

         10  high school provides the students with applied

         11  academic and contextual learning experience they

         12  will need in order to meet New York State Regents

         13  requirements. All our students also must complete an

         14  additional 16 credits, plus their 40 credits to

         15  graduate.

         16                 Automotive High School has a brand

         17  new Mercedes Benz sponsored program and has a Toyota

         18  T-10 Program since 1992.

         19                 During the past year, a new library

         20  and several vehicles were donated by Dimeler

         21  Chrysler, providing the school with some much-needed

         22  material resources.

         23                 Automotive high school, the only high

         24  school in New York City to achieve master

         25  certification in all eight national automotive
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          2  technology education foundation and automotive

          3  service excellence service areas. Both NATF and

          4  Automotive Youth Education Systems provide a place

          5  for our school, provide certified automotive

          6  training programs recognized in all 50 states at the

          7  secondary and post-secondary levels.

          8                 NATF and AYES also help evaluate the

          9  providers of in-service technicians training these

         10  programs. Automotive high school also has the

         11  support of the Greater New York Automotive Dealer

         12  Association, which is affiliated with over 600

         13  dealers in the tristate area, thus providing the

         14  school with a link to dealerships.

         15                 The NATF and AYES, along with the New

         16  York City Link Employment and Responsibility Now

         17  Program provides partial funding for cooperative

         18  learning experience at automotive dealerships.

         19                 This Co-op experience gives our

         20  students an understanding as to what is being

         21  professional and a work environment is really like.

         22  All our students at Automotive High School must meet

         23  strict guidelines in order to have an opportunity to

         24  be part of this co-op program.

         25                 One of our students worked a Work
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          2  Experience Program this summer at Toyota Dealership

          3  in Brooklyn. At the end of his paid AYES internship

          4  and funded Learn Program, the student asked if he

          5  could stay on without being paid, saying where could

          6  I get this kind of training for free?

          7                 A tenth grade student placed at a

          8  Chrysler Dealership in Queens for the month of July

          9  until they started school in September made $2,400.

         10  This student when asked if he was in a gang, like

         11  the Crips or the Bloods, he said, "No, I'm a

         12  mechanic, and glad to be one." I guess that says it

         13  all.

         14                 How many of us are in the same career

         15  that we started out in high school? We have made

         16  some adjustments in our careers, just as we have

         17  made adjustments in our lives. No one can predict

         18  what the workplace of the future will look like to

         19  our students. We can only give them the necessary

         20  skills they need to succeed in any work situation

         21  they might encounter.

         22                 I'd like to thank you.

         23                 MR. POWERS: Good afternoon, Chairman

         24  Addabbo, and Council Member Nelson. Thank you for

         25  the opportunity to testify here. I am from industry
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          2  and I never get to see this part of the process.

          3                 My name is Jack Powers, and I am the

          4  Vice Chairman of the Graphic Arts Education Advisory

          5  Commission. This is part of the Advisory Council on

          6  Career and Technical Education we've heard about

          7  today, an all volunteer group from business, labor

          8  unions, non-profits and academia, mandated by State

          9  law to advise New York schools on pathways to

         10  technical careers.

         11                 In my case, the Graphic Arts

         12  Commission supports teachers and programs in digital

         13  and offset printing, desk top publishing and graphic

         14  design, digital imaging and video editing and

         15  website development.

         16                 Other commissions within the council

         17  support the building trades, automotive, cosmetology

         18  and some other things we've heard about. These are

         19  all based on vocational education. And we're college

         20  kids here and we remember what people thought about

         21  vocational education students when we were back in

         22  high school, for the kids who weren't on an

         23  academic, who wouldn't become doctors and lawyers

         24  and NBAs. But that perception is way out of date.

         25  Now-a-days, CTE, Career in Technical Education,
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          2  covers hundreds of job titles in areas that are

          3  getting more complex, more computerized, more

          4  productive, more important to the way we run this

          5  City.

          6                 A lot of these tech jobs require some

          7  pretty good academic skills, and many need some

          8  college time and some other post-secondary

          9  education. A CTE student through our programs takes

         10  all five Regents exams that a regular student gets,

         11  plus an extra ten to 18 credits of specialized tech

         12  training, plus a technical assessment exam.

         13                 Overall, CTE students come from

         14  tougher backgrounds, lower incomes, lower test

         15  scores, generally at risk, but they graduate more

         16  often and get better Regents results than the

         17  general high school population, as we've heard

         18  several times today.

         19                 CTE works, especially for the kids

         20  who need it the most. But CTE students and CTE

         21  teachers and principals are getting, aren't getting

         22  the tools they need to succeed in education, and the

         23  latest round of Department of Education reforms

         24  sounds like more bad news for career and technical

         25  education in New York.
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          2                 Three important areas. Funding.

          3  Compared to an English class or a math class, a

          4  technical topic costs more. It's special equipment,

          5  more classroom space, expensive materials,

          6  maintenance, money, time for certification tests and

          7  more.

          8                 CTE schools need more teachers and

          9  longer school days to cover all the material they

         10  present. Some plan on five-year courses, instead of

         11  four years. And, yet, according to New York City

         12  Independent Budget Office Fiscal Brief last August,

         13  CTE schools get less money allocated per student

         14  than academic high schools.

         15                 The new funding formulas being

         16  introduced by the system don't seem to be

         17  sufficiently addressing this disparity. I'll bet

         18  this is going to be a constant battle we're going to

         19  have over the next couple of years.

         20                 Number two, teacher training and

         21  teacher development. In the world of work, employees

         22  are constantly retrained in the latest techniques,

         23  the newest equipment, the best practices, as they

         24  evolve. The CTE teachers get very little opportunity

         25  for professional development in their technical
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          2  topics.

          3                 At our Graphic Arts Commission, we're

          4  given at most two days per year to update teachers

          5  about digital imaging, electronic publishing, web

          6  development, animation, all very fast-moving

          7  technologies.

          8                 We've arranged for free night school

          9  classes for graphics teachers, but CTE teachers

         10  don't get compensated for attending these programs,

         11  or any credit on their permanent records for having

         12  attended.

         13                 Skilled teachers are hard to find,

         14  and even harder now that the federal No Child Left

         15  Behind Law requires that even a carpentry shop

         16  teacher needs an education certificate.

         17                 Even worse, the Department of

         18  Education recently eliminated the important CTE

         19  support staff that helps teachers get funding,

         20  training, certification and industry contacts.

         21                 We should be funding CTE specific

         22  professional development recruitment and we should

         23  be supporting these teachers and their principals

         24  with whatever they need to succeed.

         25                 The third piece, industry
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          2  involvement. Industry is eager to help, but

          3  sometimes working with the educational bureaucracies

          4  at the City and State levels can frustrate even the

          5  most motivated do-gooder. I've been through nine

          6  chancellors in my tenure with our advisory

          7  commission, and I've experienced the ebbs and flow

          8  of the schools management system firsthand. The

          9  interface between the Academy and the Corporation is

         10  not always an easy one.

         11                 But the advisory council model for

         12  bringing diverse constituencies together is a good

         13  one. Hearing about the great work people are doing

         14  in our quarterly council sessions, I'm struck by the

         15  endless variety of innovative partnerships and

         16  opportunities, internships, externships, mentoring,

         17  school advisory boards, class visits, job shadowing,

         18  apprentice programs, shop tours, contests,

         19  competition, there's a lot going on.

         20                 I'd like to see that advisory council

         21  you've heard about expanded to include other

         22  industries beyond the narrow CTE definitions we've

         23  got. We could use some guidance on professional

         24  management techniques through our Commissions, but

         25  the energy and innovation that industry people bring
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          2  to school partnerships should be harnessed and

          3  focused a lot better.

          4                 The system, the school system is run

          5  by people who went to college, and they expect

          6  everybody should got to college, just like they did.

          7  But focusing exclusively on an academic career

          8  misses the larger point of education, to build

          9  yourself a life.

         10                 I guess the world needs English

         11  majors, I guess the world needs psychology majors,

         12  but I know the world needs doers, people who work

         13  with their hands, who build things, fix things, make

         14  things work.

         15                 New York City has a long tradition of

         16  teaching these subjects in venerable vocational

         17  schools, like Transit Tech, the High School of

         18  Printing and Queens Vocational. These schools taught

         19  useful trade skills that gave students more than

         20  just pretty test scores - it gave them productive,

         21  fulfilling, independent and often lucrative careers.

         22  Vocation was really not a bad word for what they're

         23  doing. We should keep the best of that tradition and

         24  update it to include the next generations of

         25  technically skilled citizens. New York City depends
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          2  on it.

          3                 MR. KITA: Good afternoon, Mr.

          4  Chairman, Committee staff. My name is Henry Kita,

          5  I'm Senior Vice President of the Building Trades

          6  Employers Association of New York City, BTEA.

          7                 BTEA represents 25 contractor

          8  associations comprised of 1,500 construction

          9  managers, general contractors and subcontractors who

         10  employ the over 100,000 members of the Building and

         11  Construction Trades Council.

         12                 The BTEA represents the management

         13  half of the construction industry partnership with

         14  our colleagues in the labor sector at the Building

         15  Construction Trades Council.

         16                 It's a little ironic that management

         17  I guess gets the last word after hearing from many

         18  of my friends and colleagues from the labor side,

         19  but I am in fact here to support and augment some of

         20  the comments made and perhaps provide a little

         21  different perspective on some of the issues that

         22  face us in the construction industry where workforce

         23  training is concerned.

         24                 A lot has been said here today about

         25  the trades and apprentice programs and the like, but
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          2  there is also issues that relate to training,

          3  workforce training and development on the management

          4  side, and specifically back office staff and that

          5  sort of thing.

          6                 There is absolutely no doubt that

          7  workforce development exists as one of the major

          8  issues facing our New York construction industry

          9  today.

         10                 As you are no doubt aware, there is a

         11  construction boom taking place in New York City

         12  today, the likes of which we have not seen in a

         13  very, very long time.

         14                 There is any number of major

         15  projects, too numerous to mention at this point,

         16  that are going on all around the City in all five

         17  boroughs.

         18                 And these are all projects, be they

         19  the World Trade Center site or the soon to be

         20  Moynihan Station Project, the Javits Center, et

         21  cetera, Bank of America, that are being done by the

         22  member contractors of the BTEA and the Construction

         23  Trades Council and Construction Trades Unions whose

         24  members we employ.

         25                 We, at the BTEA are in ongoing
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          2  discussions with our bretheren at the Building

          3  Construction Trades Council regarding the need to

          4  provide competent, well-trained workers to be

          5  deployed at not only these major projects, but also

          6  a plethora of other smaller scale jobs that are out

          7  there.

          8                 The Construction Skills Initiative,

          9  or as Jack Kittle referred to it before,

         10  Construction Skills 2000, which recruits high school

         11  youth and New York City Housing Authority residents

         12  for apprentice positions in construction trades, it

         13  represents an innovative approach to satisfying some

         14  of the workforce recruitment needs on the labor side

         15  of the construction industry equation,.

         16                 While we are confident that our

         17  incomparable apprentice programs will continue to

         18  produce the well-trained workforce that we need to

         19  get the job done, we're also embroiled in the

         20  struggle to make certain that we have necessary

         21  numbers and management staff needed to keep these

         22  jobs going.

         23                 To that end, the BTEA is working

         24  closely with the Consortium for Worker Education, as

         25  represented by Ed Ott here earlier, CWE, utilizing
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          2  funding from the City Council to develop several

          3  initiatives designed to update the training of our

          4  current management workforce as well as to recruit

          5  new management employees.

          6                 Over the past 18 months, the BTEA has

          7  utilized City and State grant funding from the CWE

          8  to provide a variety of technical safety and

          9  management training to over 1,500 BTEA contractor

         10  and management staff.

         11                 This is in addition to training

         12  already provided through in-house and BTEA member

         13  association training programs. It's no secret that

         14  some of our larger firms that are members of the

         15  BTEA construction management firms, multi-national

         16  firms, such as Bovis, Tishman, Turner, Structure

         17  Tone, firms of that type and size, have their own

         18  in-house training programs, but there are numerous

         19  other general contractors and subcontractors who may

         20  not necessarily have the resources to dedicate from

         21  the bottom line or ongoing training for their

         22  management staff, and this is what we're trying to

         23  do through the CWE in addressing the training needs

         24  of some of those smaller contractors, especially.

         25                 The BTEA is also currently working
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          2  with the CWE to design a mentor protege training

          3  program that will attempt to recruit into the ranks

          4  of New York City's union contractor community, and

          5  that's contractor community, New Minority and

          6  Women's Business Enterprises, MWBEs, who will become

          7  a part of our current great building boom.

          8                 In addition to the knowledge and

          9  advice that will be imparted by the BTEA affiliated

         10  mentors to the MWBEs in this program, there will be

         11  made available a variety of training and services

         12  relevant to the bonding, legal and financial needs

         13  of growing contractors.

         14                 With the assistance of the City

         15  Council funding recently obtained by CWE, we hope to

         16  enroll up to 20 MWBEs in this cutting edge mentor

         17  protege program in early 2008, and we would

         18  obviously like to make this an ongoing program on

         19  the part of the BTEA, in bringing these MWBE firms

         20  into the contractor community, the unionized

         21  contractor community.

         22                 Concurrent to the MWBE mentor protege

         23  program, the BTEA will also be conducting a survey

         24  regarding the workforce education, training and

         25  hiring needs of our member contractors over the next
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          2  three years. This survey will be a follow-up to the

          3  seminole survey and report on local construction

          4  industry workforce in these entitled building jobs,

          5  a blueprint for the New New York that was issued by

          6  the BTEA in 2004.

          7                 We hope that this new survey will

          8  provide a road map for the development of future

          9  construction industry management, training and

         10  recruitment program, and of course, we will be happy

         11  to furnish that report once it's completed during

         12  the first quarter of 2008 with the City Council and

         13  specifically this Committee.

         14                 Finally, the BTEA has recently

         15  collaborated with the Borough of Manhattan Community

         16  College through a grant from the Lower Manhattan

         17  Development Corporation on several training programs

         18  designed to recruit and train new candidates for

         19  entry level positions in management in the

         20  construction industry.

         21                 The initial two classes in the area

         22  specifically of job scheduling to be followed by

         23  course in cost estimated, which are two workforce

         24  demand positions in the management area, and

         25  specifically two positions that were identified in
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          2  that 2004 study that I mentioned a moment ago.

          3                 While these courses represent a

          4  modest start on addressing some of our demand areas,

          5  we're hoping to continue to grow these programs

          6  through funding sources such as the consortium for

          7  worker education, and if possible, other City

          8  sources.

          9                 The few subject areas that I've

         10  touched upon here in the testimony today, are but

         11  the tip of the ice berg as it relates to

         12  construction industry workforce education and

         13  training needs.

         14                 We at the BTEA will be expanding our

         15  programming in this area in the coming months and

         16  years in order to accommodate the needs of our

         17  members, and consequently that entire community that

         18  is New York City that we serve.

         19                 We look forward to working with the

         20  Administration and with the City Council in

         21  addressing these needs and in order to continue our

         22  part of the future economic and social development

         23  of New York City, and as a final note, Mr. Chairman,

         24  you have mentioned a task force or such committee

         25  that will spin off of this hearing today, the BTEA
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          2  and specifically the management and construction

          3  industry will extend a hand to you in participating

          4  in that effort, because I think there is a story to

          5  be told, as I've just gone through where management

          6  is concerned, beyond what you've heard today from

          7  our friends and colleagues at Labor.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Kita, thank

          9  you very much. And, again, adding that different

         10  perspective of the management needs, the management

         11  side, so thank you very much. And I appreciate your

         12  working with Ed Ott and CWE, it's something that the

         13  Council has funded, we look to do more funding,

         14  giving the opportunity, because it does work. It's

         15  money well spent. So, I appreciate it.

         16                 Ms. Powers, Mr. Cassino, thank you

         17  very much for your testimony as well.

         18                 I would ask, because, again, the

         19  vocational side of it is very important, and I ask

         20  this panel to weigh in on this question, as it was

         21  mentioned earlier, coordination is very important.

         22                 Coordination with our Department of

         23  Ed, do you find that that's something we can improve

         24  on? Obviously, an open communication, or more open

         25  communication with the Department of Ed, as we start
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          2  to work more closely with the Department of Ed, as

          3  far as curriculum, as far as our schools are

          4  concerned?

          5                 MR. POWERS: Yes, there's a great deal

          6  of good talk from the Department of Ed, but they do

          7  cut back on the staffing and they do make things

          8  more difficult.

          9                 So, it's hard to let you know exactly

         10  where they're going. Certainly it's been better

         11  today than before, but as we've heard several times,

         12  they close down high schools. The elevator guy said,

         13  the graphics folks said, they close down high

         14  schools that were very successful, because their

         15  test score numbers didn't look good, let alone the

         16  fact that the kids are actually going out and

         17  getting employed afterward, their narrow definition

         18  of success is not what industry thinks that narrow

         19  definition of success should be. And, so, that

         20  dialogue and that discussion I think needs some

         21  counterveiling force, as a lifetime management guy,

         22  I'm amazed how much I wind up agreeing with the

         23  union folks on this program about how we have to be

         24  able to express ourselves more fully to the

         25  educational bureaucrats.
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          2                 It can only be a surprise to somebody

          3  overeducated in an education school that when you

          4  teach kids by showing them something practical they

          5  know how to do, CTE, they do better. It's not a

          6  surprise to anybody else.

          7                 MR. CASSINO: Yes. My name is Tom

          8  Cassino. I've been working at Automotive High School

          9  for 23 years. There's been every year doom and gloom

         10  with the Career And Tech Program, and we've always

         11  shined, we've always had kids passing the Regents,

         12  job placement, internships. We've done a great job.

         13  And the Board of Education kind of looks at us like

         14  a stepchild, you know? And when I was in high

         15  school, I wanted to be an engineer. My guidance

         16  counselor told me that I wasn't bright enough to be

         17  an engineer. I was ADHD. I was supporting my mom and

         18  my brothers, and I ended up working in a gas station

         19  at the age of 14 until I'm 59, I'm 59 years old now,

         20  in the automotive trade ever since.

         21                 I've been unemployed 45 minutes my

         22  whole life. I was working for Groman Aircraft, as an

         23  aircraft mechanic, and on my way home from being

         24  laid off, within 45 minutes I had another job.

         25                 This trade and all the trades,
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          2  provide these students with money for jobs and

          3  opportunities forever. It's not just for now, it's

          4  forever.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And these kind

          6  of opportunities lend itself to increase students

          7  staying in school, decrease the dropout rates. So,

          8  you know, to your point of always having a job, it's

          9  possible that with the right promotion, we can

         10  encourage these students to stay in school.

         11                 MR. CASSINO: We have an adult program

         12  that students that are 18 to 21 years old, we have

         13  an adult program also at our high school for kids

         14  that didn't make it, they do not have any skills,

         15  and they need a vocation.

         16                 I have one son who is a college

         17  graduate, works for Honda, makes over $125,000 a

         18  year as a tech down in North Carolina. I have

         19  another son who dropped out of school at 16, but by

         20  working with me and working with my brother on cars,

         21  makes almost as much as his brother in a two-car

         22  garage in his neighborhood.

         23                 So, having the skills, and not having

         24  the education, skills can put money on the table for

         25  an adult, as a parent, and, you know, have a family,
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          2  you know?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I agree.

          4                 MR. KITA: From the construction

          5  industry perspective, the relationship with the

          6  Department of Education is a very slow, evolutionary

          7  process. I think it's better than it had been say

          8  five or six years ago today, in terms of trying to

          9  make an impression on the educational systems,

         10  Department of Education, the old Board of Ed, where

         11  construction industry is concerned.

         12                 The Construction Skills 2000 program

         13  that was referenced earlier, and which I mentioned

         14  in my testimony, as well, goes directly to the high

         15  schools here throughout the City to recruit youth to

         16  bring them into the construction industry, and

         17  specifically into the trades. And at some point we'd

         18  like to do the same, where management is concerned,

         19  but for the time being, I think we have to content

         20  ourselves with doing this with the trade.

         21                 But it's been a tough process. We've

         22  had to deal with this almost on a school-by-school

         23  basis, developing relationships with principals and

         24  guidance counselors, and yes, parents, as well. It's

         25  been a very difficult process of trying to convince
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          2  parents that, you know, construction is an honorable

          3  and lucrative -- well, one could make a very good

          4  living in construction, and, you know, they should

          5  have their kids consider construction as a career,

          6  and these apprentice programs and union skilled

          7  trades are careers, looking at construction as a

          8  career rather than just as a job, on a job-to-job

          9  basis.

         10                 So, it's been getting better but it's

         11  been a long haul.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Well, again, I

         13  want to thank this panel for ending the Committee

         14  hearing on a high note. I want to thank all those

         15  that testified today as we start this path to,

         16  again, trying to get a better educated and qualified

         17  worker as we approach our apprenticeship programs

         18  and other programs throughout the City.

         19                 I would like to thank the staff who

         20  have put this together again, and all of those who

         21  have given me their input prior to the hearing.

         22                 I see Mike Mulgrew is still in the

         23  room from UFT. He was one of the first ones I had a

         24  conversation with, and I thank their input even

         25  prior to the hearing. The Administration is still in
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          2  the room. Matt Gordon, thank you very much for being

          3  here from the Mayor's Administration, and I look

          4  forward to working with you on this issue.

          5                 Ladies and gentlemen, thank you very

          6  much. Have a great day. Meeting adjourned.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 3:47 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 30th day of October 2007.
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